
 
 
 
BOARD OF 
TRUSTEES 
 
Sarah Hoffman 
Board Chair  
 
Michael Janz 
Board Vice-Chair 
 
Sherry Adams 
Orville Chubb 
Michelle Draper 
Ken Gibson 
Nathan Ip 
Cheryl Johner 
Ray Martin 
 
 
 

Edmonton School District No. 7 
One Kingsway 

Edmonton, Alberta 
 
 McCauley Chambers 
 Board Meeting #15 Tuesday, June 17, 2014 
   2:00 p.m. 

 
A.  O’Kanata  - amiskwaciy Drummers 
  
B.  Roll Call 
  
C.  Approval of the Agenda 
  
D.  Communications from the Board Chair 

  
E.  Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 

  
F.  Minutes 

  
 1.  DRAFT – Board Meeting #14 – June 10, 2014 
   

G.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives 
(NOTE:  Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8021] is required by 
4:30 p.m., Monday, June 16, 2014 to speak under this item.)  

  
H.  Reports 

  
 2.  Report #10 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meeting Held  

June 10, 2014) 
(Recommendation) 

   
 3.  Motion re Child Care 

(Recommendation) 
   
 4.  Policy Review Committee:  Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of 

Students and Staff 
(Recommendation) 

   
 5.  Annual Report – Wellness of Students and Staff 

(Information) 
   
 6.  Annual Report – Diversity and Equity  

(Information) 
   

I.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives – 5:00 p.m. 
(NOTE:  Pre-registration with the Board Office [780-429-8021] is required by 
4:30 p.m., Monday, June 16, 2014 to speak under this item.)  

  
J.  Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 

  
K.  Trustee and Board Requests for Information 

  
L.  Notices of Motion 

  
M.  Meeting Dates 

  
N.  Adjournment 

 

 
Page 1 of 138 

Electronic Package



MINUTE BOOK 

 
Board Meeting #14 

 
Minutes of the Board Meeting of the Trustees of the Edmonton School District No. 7 of the 
Province of Alberta held in McCauley Chambers in the Centre for Education on Tuesday, 
June 10, 2014 at 2:00 p.m. 
 
Present: 
 

 Trustees 
 

 

Sherry Adams 
Orville Chubb 

Michelle Draper 

Sarah Hoffman 
Nathan Ip 

Michael Janz 

Cheryl Johner 
Ray Martin 

  
Officials 

 

 

Diana Bolan 
Jim Davies 

David Fraser 

Mark Liguori 
Ron MacNeil 

Kathy Muhlethaler 

Darrel Robertson 
Sandra Stoddard 

 
 
Board Chair:  Sarah Hoffman  Recording Secretary:  Manon Fraser 
 
A.    O Canada   - amiskwaciy Drummers 
 
B. Roll Call:  (2:00 p.m.) 
 
The Superintendent advised that Trustee Gibson was absent.  All other Trustees were 
present. 
 
C. Approval of the Agenda 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Janz: 
 “That the agenda for the June 10, 2014 board meeting be approved as 

printed.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 

1 
June 10, 2014 

 
Page 2 of 138 

Electronic Package



MINUTE BOOK 

 
D. Recognition of National Aboriginal Day 
 
 1.  National Aboriginal Day 
 
The Board celebrated National Aboriginal Day which is held annually on June 21st to 
acknowledge the contributions and histories of the First Nation, Métis and Inuit in 
Canada. 
 
E. Communications from the Board Chair 
 
The Board Chair advised that, to honour the three R.C.M.P. officers who died in the line 
of duty last Wednesday in Moncton, New Brunswick, their families and the members of 
the Royal Canadian Mounted Police who protect our safety on a daily basis, schools have 
lowered their flags to half-mast until sunset today.  The regimental funeral for the three 
Mounties was held this morning with thousands of RCMP, other law enforcement 
officers, dignitaries and members of the public in attendance.  A moment of silence was 
observed. 
 
The Board Chair advised that Ms Sandra Woitas will be conferred with an Honorary 
Degree by the University of Alberta tomorrow evening.  Ms Woitas has devoted her 
career to helping children at risk benefit from a high-quality education. One of the 100 
Edmontonians of the Century, as director of the Edmonton Public Schools Foundation, 
she champions full-day kindergarten for students in socially vulnerable communities.   
 
The Board Chair reported on the Metro School Boards meeting that took place June 1, 
2014 in Red Deer.  The Alberta School Boards Association President and Executive 
Director were also in attendance at the meeting.  She also noted that the Minister of 
Education met with the Metro School Boards later that evening– Trustee Ip was also in 
attendance. 
 
F. Communications from the Superintendent of Schools 
 
The Superintendent congratulated Trustee Janz who is completing his Masters of Education 
degree. 
 
The Superintendent thanked Lillian Osborne School Principal Janet Hancock and Queen 
Elizabeth School Principal Sue Bell for attending the meeting today with their students with 
respect to the National Aboriginal Day presentation. 
 

2 
June 10, 2014 

 
Page 3 of 138 

Electronic Package



MINUTE BOOK 

 
G. Minutes 
 
 2.  Board Meeting #13 – May 20, 2014 
 
Trustee Adams referred to page eleven of the minutes and noted that goal of the Ready for 
Life fundraising breakfast was to raise $100,000. 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Ip: 
 “That the minutes of Board Meeting #13 held May 20, 2014 be approved as 

amended.”   (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
H.  Comments from the Public and Staff Group Representatives 
 
The Board heard from the following speakers: 
 
• Ms Claire Edwards regarding the Student Representative report 
• Ms Susan Ketteringham, on behalf of the West Edmonton  Network  of  

Neighborhood  Schools  (WENNS), regarding the replacement school process 
 
I. Reports 
 
 3.  Annual Report – First Nations, Métis and Inuit Education 
 
The Board received information regarding the supports and services provided to students 
and staff in relation to First Nations, Métis and Inuit education during the 2013-2014 school 
year.   
 
There was a break at this point. 
 
 4.  Annual Report – English Language Learners 
 
The Board heard from the following speakers regarding the Annual Report – English 
Language Learners report: 
 
• Mr. Ali Madhi, Edmonton Mennonite Centre for New Comers (EMCN) 
• Ms Mulki Ali, Multicultural Health Brokers Cooperative 
• Mr. Joseph Luri, Edmonton Mennonite Centre for New Comers (EMCN) 
• Mr. Hussein Sugulle, Edmonton Mennonite Centre for New Comers (EMCN) 

 
 

3 
June 10, 2014 

 
Page 4 of 138 

Electronic Package



MINUTE BOOK 

 
The Board received information regarding the supports and services provided in relation to 
English Language Learners (ELL) during the 2013-2014 school year.   
 
There was a break at this point. 
 
 5.  Student Representative  
 
MOVED BY Trustee Hoffman: 
 “1.  That the process to support the election and ongoing participation of a 

Student Representative to the Edmonton Public School Board, 
beginning in the 2014-2015 school year be approved. 

 
   2.  That the identified costs, associated to support this pilot, be funded out 

of the Board Initiative Fund for the 2014-2015 school year be 
approved.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 

 
 6.  Report #9 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meeting Held May 27, 2014) 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Janz: 
 “1. That Report #9 of the Caucus Committee from the meeting held 

May 27, 2014 be received and considered.”  (UNANIMOUSLY 
CARRIED) 

 
MOVED BY Trustee Janz: 
 “2.   That the appointment of Jim Davies as General Counsel for the period 

June 1, 2014 to August 31, 2016 be confirmed.”  (UNANIMOUSLY 
CARRIED) 

 
 7.  Infrastructure Committee:  Proposed Terms of Reference 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Martin: 
 “1.  That the Infrastructure Committee Terms of Reference be approved. 
 
   2.  That the current membership of the Infrastructure Committee 

(Trustees Chubb, Ip and Martin) remain until the September 2015 
organizational board meeting.”   

 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 

4 
June 10, 2014 

 
Page 5 of 138 

Electronic Package



MINUTE BOOK 

 
 8.  Public Reporting Process for Travel and Expenses 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Hoffman: 
 “That the implementation of a public reporting process for travel and expenses 

beginning June 1, 2014 be approved.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
 9.  Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Draper: 
 “That draft new Board Policy AEBB.BP - Wellness of Students and Staff be 

considered for the second time.” 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Chubb:  
 “That the statement under ‘Definitions’ in draft new Board Policy AEBB.BP – 

Wellness of Students and Staff  be amended to read as follows:  These 
dimensions do not exist in isolation; it is the balance and interplay of these 
elements that constitute wellness. All wellness curricula, including topics 
considered controversial or sensitive, such as those related to family 
interactions; personal, family and community values; personal relationships; 
personal identity; human sexuality; sexual orientation; gender and identity; 
cultural identity or religious belief; and issues of sexual and mental health 
are approached through the lens of this holistic definition of wellness.”   

 
The Board Chair called the question on the Amendment. 
 
The Amendment was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
The Board Chair called the question on the Motion as Amended. 
 

The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
 10.  Draft Board Policy CO.BP – Fiscal Oversight and Accountability 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Draper: 
 “That draft new Board Policy CO.BP – Fiscal Oversight and Accountability be 

considered for the first time and approved for posting on the District website 
for stakeholder input.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 

 
 

5 
June 10, 2014 

 
Page 6 of 138 

Electronic Package



MINUTE BOOK 

 
 11.  2014-2015 Student Transportation Fees 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Hoffman: 
 “That the 2014-2015 proposed Student Transportation Fees, to be effective 

August 2014, be approved.”  (UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED) 
 
 12.  2014-2015 Non-Resident Fees 
 
MOVED BY Trustee Hoffman: 
 “1.  That the proposed 2014-2015 Non-Alberta Residents and Special Needs 

Non-Residents fees be approved. 
 
   2.  That the proposed 2015-2016 International Student Tuition fee of 

$11,500 and the International Student Application fee of $250 be 
approved.” 

 
The Board Chair called the question. 
 
The Motion was UNANIMOUSLY CARRIED. 
 
 13.  Introduction of the Proposed 2014-2015 Spring Budget 
 
The Board received information the proposed 2014-2015 budget. 
 
J. Other Committee, Board Representative and Trustee Reports 
 
Trustee Johner, the Board’s representative on ASBA Zone 23 and a member of the ASBA 
Zone 23 Edwin Parr Selection Committee, advised that Mr. Erik Lundeen, a first-year 
teacher at Belmead School, was named the ASBA Zone 23 winner of the Edwin Parr 
Teacher Award.  
 
Trustee Adams, the Board’s representative on the Edmonton Public Schools Foundation 
Board of Governors, reported that the Ready for Life fundraising breakfast held May 29, 
2014 has raised $80,000 so far with a goal of $100,000.  The Foundation has raised 
$600,000 to date which will enable all of the full-day kindergarten sites to be maintained.  
She also commended the Oilers Foundation for committing yesterday to fund the full-day 
kindergarten program at Princeton School for two more years which amounts to $50,000 
each year.    
 

6 
June 10, 2014 

 
Page 7 of 138 

Electronic Package



MINUTE BOOK 

 
Trustee Hoffman advised that Trustees met on Monday with Alberta Liberal Education 
Critic Kent Hehr to discuss some of the Board’s key areas of focus.   
 
Trustee Hoffman noted a number of Trustees attended the Alberta School Boards 
Association Spring General Meeting in Red Deer June 1 to 3, 2014.  She commended 
Vice-Chair Janz for his chairing of the business session on June 2, 2014.   
 
Trustee Hoffman advised that she and Trustee Janz attended the Minister of Education’s 
Inspiring Education Symposium held in Red Deer on June 4, 2014.  Information about the 
sessions she attended will be posted on the Board Intranet Site. 
 
K. Trustee and Board Requests for Information – None. 
 
L. Notices of Motion 
 
Trustee Ip served notice of the following motion: 
 
1.  That the Board join the Edmonton Catholic School Board in endorsing the following 

resolution:  The Provincial Government should fund child care space in new school 
buildings and develop a cohesive child care strategy. 

 
2.  That the Board develop key actions to advocate this position to the Province. 
 
M. Next Board Meeting Date:   Tuesday, June 17, 2014 at 2:00 p.m.  
 
N.    Adjournment (7:50 p.m.) 
 
The Board Chair adjourned the meeting. 
 
 
 
 
 
   

Sarah Hoffman, Board Chair  Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Executive Director  
Governance and Strategic Support Services 

       
 

7 
June 10, 2014 

 
Page 8 of 138 

Electronic Package



 
DATE: June 17, 2014 
  
TO: Board of Trustees  
  
FROM:  Trustee Michael Janz, Caucus Committee Chair 
  
SUBJECT:  Report #10 of the Caucus Committee (From the Meeting Held June 10, 2014) 
  
ORIGINATOR:  Dr. Sandra Stoddard, Executive Director Governance and Strategic Support 

Services 
  
REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook – Caucus Committee Section 5.4 

School Act Section 61 
 

 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. That Report #10 of the Caucus Committee from the meeting held June 10, 2014 be received 

and considered. 
 
2. That,  in preparation for the Organizational Board meeting to be held on September 2, 2014, 

the following be approved: 
 
a) The Policy Review Committee, the District Priorities and Governance Committee, and 

the Board and Superintendent of Schools Evaluations Committee remain as three 
standing committees. 
 

b) The Audit committee be converted to a committee of the whole.   
 

c) In advance of the late summer retreat, the Advocacy Committee and Community 
Relations Committee terminate. 
 

d) The purpose of each standing and ad hoc committee be reviewed on an annual basis to 
ensure value-added benefits and alignment to the Strategic Plan.  
 

e) The proposed wording changes to the Terms of Reference, as submitted by the Policy 
Review Committee, the District Priorities and Governance Committee, and the Board 
and Superintendent of Schools Evaluations Committee (Attachment I). 
 

f) Trustee representation on the Capital Region Services to Children Linkages Committee 
be terminated.   
 

g) Trustee representation on the Edmonton Public Schools Foundation Committee 
continue. 
 

h) An August Board retreat, in lieu of the Board’s fall retreat, be organized to prioritize 
possible initiatives in support of the District’s Strategic Plan. In advance of the retreat, 
Trustees will be provided with a package of pre-reading material to provide context for 
the work and clarify the terms of the retreat. 

 

1 
 

Page 9 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook2013-2014.pdf
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/574.cfm?page=s03.cfm&leg_type=Acts&isbncln=9780779733941


 
 

BACKGROUND 
The purpose of the District Priorities and Governance Committee is to make recommendations 
to the Board on a range of governance related matters to assist the Board in carrying out its 
duties and commitments.  As per its Terms of Reference, the Committee is responsible for 
reviewing and updating the School Board Governance and Operations Section of the Policy 
Manual (Trustees’ Handbook) at least once per term or as required.  

 
In order to ensure that the Board is able to meet its roles and responsibilities as governors, and 
to complete their tasks in an effective and timely manner, it is important to ensure that the 
current committee structures facilitate and support these goals. The District Priorities and 
Governance Committee began the process of reviewing the Board Committees section of the 
Trustees’ Handbook in March 2014 by asking each committee to have a focused conversation 
around their committee’s purpose in relationship to supporting the Board. 
 
On May 12, 2014, the District Priorities and Governance Committee reviewed the feedback 
gathered from each standing and ad hoc committee.  In brief, the analysis of the feedback 
gathered from all committees indicated overwhelming support for the recommendations being 
brought forward by the District Priorities and Governance Committee to the June 10, 2014 
Caucus Committee.   
 
NEXT STEPS 
• If the recommendations are approved as outlined above, the Administration will proceed 

with the next steps to support the revision of the Board Committee section for the Trustees’ 
Handbook to support the work of the District Priorities and Governance Committee. The 
revision to this section is intended to be completed in advance of the late summer Board 
retreat and the Organizational Board meeting to be held September 2, 2014. In addition, the 
Advocacy and Community Relations Committees will need to ensure proper closure of 
outstanding items.  
 

• The revised terms of reference for the Audit Committee will be reviewed in advance of the 
late summer Board retreat and the September 2, 2014 Organizational board meeting. 
 

• The revised Trustees’ Handbook will be published on the Board’s Intranet Site (BIS) in 
advance of the late summer Board retreat and the Organizational Board meeting held in 
September 2014. 

 
ATTACHMENTS & APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I - Proposed wording changes to the Terms of Reference for the Policy Review 

Committee, the District Priorities and Governance Committee, and the Board 
and Superintendent of Schools Evaluations Committee 

 
:mmf  

2 
 

Page 10 of 138 
Electronic Package



    
Attachment I 

 
 
6.1.3    Board and Superintendent of Schools Evaluation Committee  
 (Pages 52 to 58 of the Trustees’ Handbook) 
 

Purpose 
 

 The Board and Superintendent of Schools Evaluations Committee (BSEC) is 
responsible for assisting the Board of Trustees to conduct: 

 
• an annual Board self-evaluation for continued Board development and improved 

Board performance with respect to the Board's role and responsibilities; 
 

• an annual evaluation of the Superintendent of Schools in accordance with Board 
Policy FGB.BP - Evaluation of Superintendent of Schools and the review and/or 
renewal of the Superintendent of Schools Contract in accordance with the School Act. 

 
Composition 

 
The committee will consist of three Trustees from among which a chair will be 
selected. The chair is responsible for leading the discussion at each meeting and 
formally reporting back to the Board about the committee’s activities. 

 
Additional resources may be involved as requested by the Superintendent of Schools 
and/or designate. 

 
Terms of Reference 

 
A.  Board Self-Evaluation 

 
The Board shall undertake an annual Board evaluation for the purpose of Board 
development and to model its policy of system-wide evaluation as a means of 
continuous improvement. 

 
 The Board Evaluation process should: 

• measure Board performance with respect to the Mission, Vision, Values, District 
Priorities, District Strategic Plan, the roles and responsibilities of the Board, and 
the principles of operation of the Board; 

• assist the Board in identifying Board strengths and areas for improvement, and 
common beliefs and values amongst Trustees; 

• provide an opportunity for Trustees to reflect on how they work collectively and as 
individuals with respect to the Board's mandate and role and responsibilities; 

• provide an opportunity for Trustees to discuss the Board Evaluation results in the 
context of Board development; and 

• provide an opportunity to recognize the Board's accomplishments. 
 

 
3 
 

Page 11 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook2013-2014.pdf
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fgb-bp/
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/1266.cfm?page=s03.cfm&leg_type=Acts&isbncln=9780779775149&display=html


    
 
 
The Committee will: 

 
• recommend a plan to  Caucus Committee for the annual evaluation of the Board of 

Trustees in keeping with the terms of reference for the Board self-evaluation; 
• develop and recommend to Caucus Committee a proposed Board result statement 

based on an analysis of the Board's self-evaluation; 
• present the Board evaluation result statement on behalf of the Caucus Committee to 

public Board for approval; and 
• in the last year of a term, assist in the creation of a summary document of the Board’s 

results and work still to be accomplished to aid in the transition for the next Board. 
 
 The Board Self- Evaluation Instrument should: 
 

• be brief; it should not take more than one hour for completion by each Trustee; 
• be specific to the Board of Trustees of Edmonton Public Schools; 
• measure Board performance with respect to the mission statement, the roles and 

responsibilities of the Board, the principles of operation of the Board, the District 
Priorities and the Board strategic plan; (moved to Section A. – Board Self-
Evaluation) 

• measure Board performance in both quantitative and qualitative terms; 
• lend itself to ease of aggregating results; and  
• provide a basis of comparison of Board performance from year to year over the 

Board's term. 
 

The Board Self- Evaluation process will consist of six main activities: 
 
 1) All Board members will complete a Comprehensive Self-Evaluation in June. 
 
 2) With the exception of an election year, the results will be used to create an Annual 

Governance Action Plan at the Board annual retreat in the fall.  The plan will 
highlight what the Board is doing well and where it needs to improve. The Action Plan 
will include the following elements: 

 
• What do we want to achieve? – What areas do we want to improve and what 

results do we want? 
 

• Actions – What concrete actions/activities will we undertake to achieve the results 
we want? 

 
• Lead person(s) – Which individual or committee will lead/coordinate each 

activity? 
 

• Resources – What money, equipment, facilities, staff do we need to successfully 
carry out these activities? (Board Initiative Fund) 

 
• Timelines – How long will specific activities/actions take? 

4 
 

Page 12 of 138 
Electronic Package



    
 

• Review and Measures – How will we know if we have achieved what we set out 
to do? The Governance Action Plan is the Board’s plan for improvement – in short, 
a roadmap to better governance. It will be used to form the basis of a work plan for 
the Board and the work of its committees and representatives.  It will also guide 
the development of a targeted professional development plan that will focus on 
building the Board’s capacity in the key improvement areas. 

 
 3) After the Governance Action Plan is created, the Board will share a summary report 

on results achieved the previous year and the intended actions at a public board 
meeting. 

 
 4)   A review of the status of the Action Plan will occur in January, March and June. The 

Executive Director Governance and Strategic Support Services will facilitate 
discussion with an intended length of two hours with a purpose to assess/reflect on 
progress toward achieving the Board’s goals. This will include a celebration of 
successes and identification of strategies/next steps for improvement or focusing the 
Board in the months ahead. The conversation will be captured by the Executive 
Director Governance and Strategic Support Services. 

 
 5)   In addition to the development of a targeted professional development plan for the 

Board, individuals may wish to develop a Trustee Annual Professional Growth Plan 
that will assist in developing strategies to improve their own individual Trustee 
performance. A template for identifying areas for growth and developing a course of 
action to achieve improvement will be developed and provided. This will assist 
Trustees in targeting their professional development funds for the year. 

 
 6)  To further inform the Board, an external review of board meeting webcasts (twice a 

year) will be conducted to provide feedback on board meetings as they relate to 
evidence of indicators of success in the eleven key areas, identified in the 
Comprehensive Self Evaluation. 

 
 7)   In an election year, the process will be modified with the Annual Governance Plan 

being created in the early winter and only two reviews of the status occurring (March, 
June) before the new Board completes the summative Comprehensive Board Self-
Evaluation in June. 

  

5 
 

Page 13 of 138 
Electronic Package



    
B.  Evaluation of the Superintendent of Schools 

 
Purpose of the Evaluation 

 
 The evaluation of the Superintendent of Schools is a vital process toward creating and 

maintaining a healthy school district. The Board of Trustees believes that organizational 
outcomes must be clearly and explicitly stated to: 

 
1.   ensure the Superintendent of Schools understands what is being expected and evaluated; 
2.   ensure the Board understands what to expect of the Superintendent; and  
3.   ensure the Superintendent of Schools and the Board clearly understand their respective 

roles and responsibilities. 
 

The evaluation process and supporting information sources serve to: 
 

• Help to continuously improve the functioning of the District; 
• Recognize areas and trends that are showing positive change or progress; 
• Provide feedback to the Superintendent of Schools regarding his leadership and 

performance expectations in key areas; 
• Provide ground work for establishing future goals; 
• Allow the Superintendent of Schools to report on his successes and challenges during 

the year, and provide feedback relating to continuous improvement efforts and annual 
goals; 

• Enable the Board and Superintendent of Schools to engage in dialogue about results, 
and discuss any issues or concerns associated with the role and the evaluation process; 
and 

• Strengthen the relationship between the Superintendent of Schools and the Board. 
 

 Process 
 
 1. The Committee shall be responsible for: 

a. recommending the evaluation process to be used to  Caucus Committee; 
b. overseeing the approved evaluation process; and 
c. reporting the evaluation results to the Caucus Committee and to public 

Board. 
d. initiating a timely review and/or renewal process for the Superintendent 

of Schools contract of employment in accordance with the School Act and 
provisions of the Superintendent’s contract. 
 

 2. The evaluation process shall provide the Superintendent of Schools with an 
opportunity to: 
a. review all pertinent information used in the evaluation; 
b. discuss the evaluation report with the Trustee subcommittee; 
c. include a response to the evaluation in the report to Caucus Committee; 
d. discuss the evaluation report with the Caucus Committee. 

  

6 
 

Page 14 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.qp.alberta.ca/1266.cfm?page=s03.cfm&leg_type=Acts&isbncln=9780779775149&display=html


    
 
 3. Notwithstanding 1 and 2 above, if the evaluation process calls for individual 

Trustee evaluations of the Superintendent of Schools, the individual evaluations 
shall be compiled and summarized for reporting purposes by the administrator 
assigned to assist the committee and destroyed once the Superintendent of 
Schools has an opportunity to review them.  

 
 4. The Superintendent of Schools shall be provided a copy of the evaluation report 

submitted Caucus Committee and the final evaluation report to Board. 
 

 5. The Caucus Committee evaluation report and Board evaluation report shall be 
filed in the Board corporate records. The records shall be accessible to the 
Superintendent of Schools, a Trustee for that evaluation period, or as directed by 
motion of the Caucus Committee. 

 
 6. The Chair of the Trustee subcommittee shall report the results of the evaluation to 

Board at a public board meeting.  (Moved to Item 1.c. under Process) 
 

 
 7. The Committee shall be responsible for initiating a review and/or renewal process 

for the Superintendent of Schools contract of employment no later than 
September of the school year the contract is due to expire.  (Moved to Item 1.d. 
under Process) 

 
 Process  
 

The Superintendent of Schools’ evaluation instrument consists of three parts:  
 
A. Priority Performance Goals  
B. District Management  
C. Leadership and Professional Conduct 

 
 Priority Performance Goals are three to five main areas of focus the Superintendent will 

work toward in addition to carrying out ongoing duties and responsibilities. These goals 
should be developed in relation to an established district mission or other priorities 
established by the Board, and may also include personal/professional goals, which would 
not be included in the District’s work plan. In collaboration with the BSEC, the 
Superintendent sets annual goals and provides updates to the Board on a periodic basis. 

 The assessment of District Management practices is geared to evaluate general management 
performance of ongoing responsibilities, and to assist the Board and Superintendent in 
identifying issues and areas they may wish to address with a Priority Performance Goal 
during the following evaluation year. This is a secondary aspect of the evaluation and should 
be used primarily to assess ongoing improvements in the District and plan for 
superintendent priorities in coming years. 

 
 Leadership and Professional Conduct reviews the Superintendent’s performance in 

leadership through empowering others, visioning, and creating a school culture and climate 
of engagement. It also stresses the importance of modeling appropriate values, ethical 

7 
 

Page 15 of 138 
Electronic Package



    
behaviour, and assesses the Superintendent’s understanding and sensitivity of competing 
interests in the District and broader community.  

  
Evaluation Implementation Steps 

 
 The steps to carry out a fair and comprehensive evaluation process are outlined below. The 

Board and Superintendent Evaluation Committee (BSEC) will lead the process, with support 
from the Executive Director Governance and Strategic Support Services, as per the 
Committee’s terms of reference.  

 
1. The BSEC will review the evaluation instrument to ensure it meets current needs;  
2. Customize the indicators in selected areas to meet district expectations;  
3. Prior to Board approval, the BSEC will consult with the Superintendent about the process, 

the instrument and timelines; 
4. The Board will approve use of the instrument prior to the evaluation taking place; 
5. The Administration will gather supporting documents and reports that will serve to inform 

the Board and Trustees in the evaluation, including an update or progress report from the 
Superintendent; 

6. Identify who will prepare the documentation, collect and tabulate the input;  
7. Train all input providers on how to complete the evaluation instrument;  
8. Trustees complete the evaluation instrument individually;  
9. Tabulate the data and compile the overall results and comments into one document and 

will include the range of ratings provided in each category; 
10. The chair of the BSEC will present the evaluation to the Superintendent and provide 

feedback; 
11. The Superintendent will provide a response to the Board at an in-camera meeting; 
12. The Board and the Superintendent will then engage in dialogue about the results; 
13. A statement will be read at a public meeting to inform the community on the broad results 

of the evaluation and progress on district goals; 
14. The results will serve to inform future work including the identifying new priority 

performance goals for the year. Priority performance goals should not be considered 
additive work and should not exceed five (5) goals; 

15. Begin the evaluation process again in December. 
 
 Evaluation Method 
 

The Board acknowledges that individual members’ judgment on the indicators may vary 
from  Board member to member and from incident to incident. Significant differences 
among members of the Board about superintendent performance in this area will be 
discussed among the Board so that consistent direction and expectations can be provided 
to the Superintendent.  
Providing a particularly low score based on one incident can be perceived as an unfair 
assessment if the Superintendent performs well or makes sound decisions in most cases.  
It should be remembered that corrective action on an unmet expectation should not show 
up on the evaluation as a point of first contact on a matter of concern to the Board. 
 
A Trustee should assess each item based on whether or not the individual feels the 
Superintendent exercised sound judgment on a generally consistent basis. The Board’s 
overall rating on an item will reflect the assessment of a majority of the Board. 

8 
 

Page 16 of 138 
Electronic Package



    
 
  
 
 Rating Scale 
 
 Trustees will be required to fill out the evaluation individually using the following rating scale.  
 
   5   -  Always / Outstanding     
    The Superintendent excels in this category. 
   4   -  Almost always / Very competent 
    The Superintendent exceeds the expectations of his job description.  
   3   -  Usually / Satisfactory 
    The Superintendent meets expectations outlined in his job description. 
   2   -  Sometimes / Needs Improvement 
    The Superintendent needs to concentrate self-improvement efforts in this area. 
   1   -  Rarely / Unsatisfactory 
    The Superintendent’s performance in this category is unacceptable and requires 

immediate attention. 
   N/A  No basis for judgment 
 
  Written Comments  
 
 Constructive and detailed written comments always help clarify the evaluation. This 

provides the Board with the opportunity to deliver specific constructive feedback, 
including accolades and provides the Superintendent with useful information for 
continuous performance improvement. The Board should speak with one voice in making 
written comments on the final summary evaluation form.  

 
  Note 
 
 Any rating of “2” or “1”should be accompanied by a comment indicating the nature of 

the deficiency or a statement of what the Board expected to see in the performance that 
was not evident. 

 
  

9 
 

Page 17 of 138 
Electronic Package



    
6.1.5 District Priorities and Governance Committee 
 (Pages 59 to 60 of the Trustees’ Handbook) 
 
 Purpose 

 
 The District Priorities and Governance Committee is responsible for assisting the Board 

in identifying and developing the priorities that will guide District operations and the 
budget planning cycle for the Board's four-year term of office.  The Committee makes 
recommendations to the Board on range of governance related matters to assist the Board 
in carrying out its duties and commitments in relation to the District Priorities. 

 
 Terms of Reference 

 
 District priorities should be within the Board's mandate and few in number in 

order that district resources may be effectively concentrated to achieve measurable 
results. 

 
 After an election, following the organizational meeting, the committee will: 

• Recommend and facilitate a process for each Board member to contribute to the 
development of the District Priorities; 

• Seek student, staff, parent and community stakeholder input into the District 
Priorities; and 

• Consider all input received and develop and recommend a District priorities 
statement to Board for approval.  

 
 The Committee will also: 

• Develop Board Retreat agendas Develop Board Retreat agendas and chair 
retreats 

• Review and monitor Board Work Plan progress; 
• Review the Trustee Protocols to ensure they are current and relevant; 
• Review and update the School Board Governance and Operations Section of the 

Policy Manual (Trustees’ Handbook) at least once per term or as required; 
• Review the Trustee remuneration package once per term; and 
• Develop an orientation plan for the next Board  Review the post-election 

orientation process and develop an orientation plan for the next Board 
• Seek input from other Board Committees in performance of the 

responsibilities of this committee 
 
 Composition 
 
 The committee will consist of three Trustees from among which a chair will be 

selected. The chair is responsible for leading the discussion at each meeting and 
formally reporting back to the Board about the committee’s activities. 

 
 A representative from the Superintendent’s office will be assigned as a staff 

resource. Additional resources may be involved as requested by the Superintendent 
and/or designate. 

 

10 
 

Page 18 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook2013-2014.pdf


    
 
 
6.1.7 Policy Review Committee 
 (Pages 60 to 61 of the Trustees’ Handbook) 
 
 Purpose 

 
 The Policy Review Committee is responsible for assisting the Board in reviewing 

Board policy by ensuring that Board policies submitted for Board approval are 
developed and reviewed in accordance with the Board's policy on Policy Development 
and Review. 

 
 Composition 

 
 The committee will consist of three Trustees from among which a chair will be 

selected. The chair is responsible for leading the discussion at each meeting and 
formally reporting back to the Board about the committee’s activities. 

 
 A representative from the Superintendent’s office will be assigned as a staff 

resource. Additional resources may be involved as requested by the Superintendent 
and/or designate. 

 
 Terms of Reference 
 
 The committee will: 

- recommend an annual plan for policy reviews to Board; and 
- review and recommend to Board for approval those policies recommended by the 

Superintendent of Schools that meet the Board's criteria for policy development 
and review.  

- recommend an annual plan for policy reviews to Board that will address the 
complete review of all board policy over the Board’s term and accommodate 
the need for any emergent reviews; 

- fulfill the annual plan for policy reviews by working with the support of the 
Superintendent of Schools/designate and Administration subject matter 
experts to review, consolidate and develop policy using the standard 
framework for process, content development, structure and format outlined 
in board policy CH.BP - Framework for Policy Development and Review 

- recommend to Board for approval those policies that meet the Board’s policy 
criteria as outlined in board policy CH.BP - Framework for Policy 
Development and Review 
 

 NOTE:  On January 31, 2012 the Board approved the following motion: That the 
Board undertake a full review of all its policies and update them using a 
standard framework for process, content development, structure and 
format.  That the review process and standard framework be developed by 
the Policy Review Committee and recommended to the Board for approval. 

 

11 
 

Page 19 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook2013-2014.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/c/ch-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/c/ch-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/c/ch-bp/


 
DATE: June 17, 2014 

 
TO: Board of Trustees 

 
FROM:  Trustee Nathan Ip 

 
SUBJECT:  Motion re Child Care 

 
REFERENCE: Trustees’ Handbook – Meetings of the Board (Notices of Motion)  

– Section 5.2.2 
 
 
ISSUE 
Notice of motion was served at the June 10, 2014 board meeting. 
 
RECOMMENDATION 
1. That the Board join the Edmonton Catholic School Board in endorsing the following 

resolution:  The Provincial Government should fund child care space in new school 
buildings and develop a cohesive child care strategy. 
 

2. That the Board develop key actions to advocate this position to the Province. 
 

RELATED FACTS 
The Edmonton Catholic School Board approved the following recommendation at their May 20, 
2014 board meeting: 
 
That the Board of Trustees submits the following policy resolution to the Alberta School Board 
Association for their 2014 Fall General Meeting:  Creating Child Care Space in New Schools 
– The provincial government should fund child care space in new school buildings and develop 
a cohesive child care strategy.  
 

 
ATTACHMENTS & APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I May 20, 2014 Report to the Edmonton Catholic School Board 

 
NI:mmf 
 

  

1 
Page 20 of 138 

Electronic Package

http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/policies/trusteeshandbook2013-2014.pdf


 

Attachment I 
 

 

2 
Page 21 of 138 

Electronic Package



 

1 

DATE:  June 17, 2014 
 
TO:   Board of Trustees 

 
FROM:  Trustee Michelle Draper, Chair Policy Review Committee 

  Trustee Sarah Hoffman, Policy Review Committee 
  Trustee Nathan Ip, Policy Review Committee 

 
SUBJECT:  Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff   
 
RESOURCE 
STAFF:   David Fraser, Debbie Jackson, Lynn Norris, Kent Pharis, Anne Sherwood, 

Sandra Stoddard 
 
REFERENCE:  Draft Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff (March 4, 

2014 Board Report) 
 
 
ISSUE  
Revisions to the Board’s policy direction for the health and wellness of students and staff are 
needed to reflect the context of the District’s work related to the health and wellness of students 
and staff, current research and provincial curriculum direction.  
  
RECOMMENDATION 
1. That the draft new Board Policy AEBB.BP - Wellness of Students and Staff (as shown 

in Attachment I) be considered for the third time and approved.  
2. That, Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff having been approved, 

the following board policies be rescinded:    
a. FBE.BP – Health and Wellness of Staff and Students (Attachment II a.) 
b. FBEA.BP – Occupational Health and Safety (Attachment II b.) 
c. FIC.BP – Employee Assistance (Attachment II c.) 
d. GIAA.BP – Health Instruction Materials (Attachment II d.) 
e. GJ.BP – Comprehensive Guidance and Counselling Programs and Services 

(Attachment II e.)  
  

 
BACKGROUND 
On June 10, 2014, the Board of Trustees (the Board) gave second consideration to the draft new 
Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff and approved an amendment under 
the definition of wellness as shown in Attachment V page 2 of 3.  The Policy Review 
Committee met to review the wording of the amendment under the wellness definition and is 
recommending a further revision, as shown in Attachment I by strike out and shading, to ensure 
both the accuracy of the statement as it relates to wellness curricula topics and to capture the 
spirit and intent of the Board’s amendment as it relates to acceptance of diversity.    
 
The Board gave first consideration to a draft new Board Policy AEBB.BP - Wellness of 
Students and Staff on March 4, 2014 (see link provided in the above Reference) which was 
subsequently posted for stakeholder feedback from March 7, 2014 to April 6, 2014.  The Policy 

Page 22 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2013-14/march4/DraftBoardPolicyAEBB.BP-WellnessofStudentsandStaff.pdf
http://epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2013-14/march4/DraftBoardPolicyAEBB.BP-WellnessofStudentsandStaff.pdf


 

2 

Review Committee reviewed the results of the survey and other submissions provided by 
stakeholders in making revisions to the recommended Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of 
Students and Staff. 
 
RELATED FACTS  
• The comprehensive review of all board policy is organized around board responsibilities 

outlined in the anticipated new Education Act.  Three major policy themes (respectful 
environment, health and wellness, and safety and security) were identified for section 
33(1)(d) of the Education Act  -- “each student enrolled in a school operated by the board 
and each staff member employed by the board is provided with a welcoming, caring, 
respectful and safe learning environment that respects diversity and fosters a sense of 
belonging.”  Draft new Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff is 
addressing the policy theme for “health and wellness”.  The policy also addresses the 
Board’s responsibility under Section 33(1)(h) of the Education Act “to establish and 
maintain governance and organizational structures that promote student and staff well-being 
and success, and monitor and evaluate their effectiveness.”   

• Current board policies that address the Board expectations for district health and wellness 
supports for both students and staff (Attachment II a-e) were reviewed and consolidated into 
the new draft policy as shown in Attachment II.   

• The holistic concept of “wellness” used in the draft policy is taken from the Framework for 
Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education developed by Alberta Education based on 
current research and broad stakeholder input.  This document identifies the fundamental 
concepts and inherent values of K-12 wellness education for future development of the 
programs of study in Alberta which is anticipated to be completed in 2016.    

 
OPTIONS 
The following options are selected for consideration as they are deemed the most admissible: 
1. The Board considers draft new Board Policy AEBB.BP - Wellness of Students and Staff for 

the third time and approves the policy as shown in Attachment I.   
2. The Board considers new draft Board Policy AEBB.BP - Wellness of Students and Staff for 

the third time and provides direction to the Policy Review Committee to consider further 
revisions before bringing back to the Board for final approval.   

 
CONSIDERATIONS & ANALYSIS 
There were 227 respondents to the stakeholder survey on draft Board Policy AEBB.BP - 
Wellness of Students and Staff of which 75 percent to 85 percent, depending on the section of 
the policy being reviewed, supported the proposed policy as written.  While the majority of 
respondents were supportive of the policy, 15 percent to 25 percent, depending on the section of 
the policy being reviewed, provided comments with concerns, suggestions or commendations.   
 
The Policy Review Committee reviewed the comments and input provided by stakeholders.  
Attachment III provides an overview of the themes and key points identified and the 
considerations and rationale for changes to the draft policy.  Attachment IV shows the deletions 
and additions made to the March 4, 2014 version of the draft policy by strikeout and shading.  
The following provides a brief summary of key considerations and changes:   

  

Page 23 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

3 

 
Spiritual Wellness 
• To address a concern that the term “spiritual wellness” implies a religious affiliation that 

may not be inclusive of diverse values and beliefs, the Purpose was revised to emphasize 
that our learning and working environments will “address and respect the diversity within 
our student and staff population.” 

• To further convey that spiritual wellness is a personal matter involving an understanding of 
one’s own values and beliefs, the last sentence of the preface to the wellness definition now 
reads:  “Personal wellness occurs with commitment to a lifestyle based on healthy attitudes 
and actions that honour self and others.” 

• All board policies provide direction and guidance to the Administration and are not meant to 
be read in isolation.  Other board policies and administrative regulations that address the 
Board of Trustees’ expectations for inclusion and respect for differences of culture, religion 
and sexual orientation were added to the References section of the policy.   

 
Comprehensive School Health 
• A definition was added for the Comprehensive School Health approach to addressing 

student and staff wellness, which formed part of the research and basis for Alberta 
Education’s Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education.  The 
Comprehensive School Health approach has been promoted within the District for the last 
several years and is now explicitly endorsed within this policy.    
 

Human Sexual Education 
• Human sexual education, the selection of instructional resources and the need for students to 

be fully informed was raised as a point of concern by several stakeholders.   
• All wellness related curricula are intended to be taught from the perspective of the holistic 

definition of wellness that addresses the interplay of the five elements of wellness: the 
emotional, intellectual, physical, social and spiritual dimensions of a topic. To make this 
clearer an explanation of this concept has been added under the definition of wellness which 
reads:  “These dimensions do not exist in isolation; … All wellness curricula, including 
topics considered controversial or sensitive, such as those related to family interactions; 
personal, family and community values; personal relationships; and issues of sexual and 
mental health are approached through the lens of this holistic definition of wellness.”  

• Expectation 4 in the draft policy has been revised to make it clearer that “curricular 
instruction” will be provided to students “in accordance with the School Act, regulations and 
the Guide to Education.”  The Guide to Education governs the programs of study offered to 
students.  Human sexuality education is offered in Grade 4 to Grade 9 as a mandatory part 
of the program of studies with specific outcomes identified.  Additionally, at the high school 
level, the Career and Life Management (CALM) course is offered and contains specific 
outcomes relative to human sexuality.  

• There are references to Board Policy GAA.BP – Student Programs of Study, which 
articulates the Board’s expectation that all student programs will use “a wide range of 
teaching and learning resources that reflect and value the diversity in the District so that all 
students see themselves and their lives positively reflected within the curriculum.”  

• There is a reference to the administrative regulation that addresses the selection of 
instructional resources “appropriate for the program of studies, the program’s instructional 
philosophy and for the age, social and emotional development, and learning style of the 

Page 24 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

4 

students for whom the materials are selected” (Administrative Regulation GI.AR - Teaching 
and Learning Resources).  As explained in Attachment III, with respect to instructional 
resources for sexual education, the District encourages teachers to refer to Canadian 
Guidelines for Sexual Health Education and the lesson plans, programs and comprehensive 
evidence-based information developed by Alberta educators and health professionals housed 
online at teachingsexualhealth.ca. 

• The Guide to Education indicates that studying controversial topics that give rise to 
alternative points of view, such as human sexuality, assists in preparing students to 
participate responsibly in society, as well as providing opportunities to develop the ability to 
think clearly, to reason logically, to open-mindedly and respectfully examine different 
points of view and to make sound judgments.  Controversial topics should be used by 
teachers to promote critical inquiry and thinking skills.  Teachers must provide a broad view 
and balanced approach to perspectives on controversial subjects.  

• As well, the Guide to Education contains a Human Sexuality Education Policy which 
provides for notice to parents under section 11.1 of the Alberta Human Rights Act and the 
parental right to exempt their student, where courses of study, educational programs or 
instructional material, instruction or exercises include subject matter that deals primarily 
and explicitly with religion, human sexuality or sexual orientation.   

• Should the new draft Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff be approved,  
administrative regulations and processes will be reviewed, revised and/or developed and 
communicated to teachers with respect to the selection of instructional resources for 
controversial subjects and appropriate notice to parents when a controversial subject will be 
taught.   
 

Staff Wellness 
• Staff wellness was identified as an area of concern requiring more preventative and 

proactive strategies that promote personal well-being and a healthy and respectful work 
environment.   

• This policy specifically speaks to “a proactive approach to creating positive and supportive 
environments that contribute to the well-being of self and others.”  As well, there is both a 
board policy and administrative regulation addressing respectful working environments 
which has been added as a reference to this policy. 

 
NEXT STEPS   
Should the new board policy be approved, implementation of the new policy will require 
review, revision and, or development of administrative regulations related to supports for 
wellness of students and supports for wellness of staff which will take place over the 2014-2015 
school year. 
  
ATTACHMENTS & APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I Recommended Draft New Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of 

Students and Staff 
ATTACHMENT II Revised Draft Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff 

showing consolidation 
a) FBE.BP – Health and Wellness of Staff and Students 
b) FBEA.BP – Occupational Health and Safety 
c) FIC.BP – Employee Assistance 
d) GIAA.BP – Health Instruction Materials 

Page 25 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.teachingsexualhealth.ca/


 

5 

e) GJ.BP – Comprehensive Guidance and Counselling Programs and 
Services 

ATTACHMENT III Summary of Themes and Key Points from Stakeholder Feedback and 
Committee Considerations 

ATTACHMENT IV Deletions and Additions from the March 4, 2014 Version of Board Policy 
AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff 

ATTACHMENT V June 10, 2014  Draft of new Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of 
Students and Staff as amended by the Board of Trustees 

 
 
DJ/AS:lb 

Page 26 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

AEBB.BP -- Page 1 of 3 

CODE: AEBB.BP 
 
TOPIC: Wellness of Students and Staff 
 

 
PURPOSE   
 
To assist students and staff in reaching their full potential by providing policy direction to create 
learning and working environments that supports a district culture of wellness. 
 
Positive and supportive social and physical learning and working environments address and respect the 
diversity within our student and staff population and are a key contributor to health for individuals.   A 
wellness policy supports the Board of Trustees (the Board) in meeting its responsibility to establish and 
maintain governance and organizational structures that promote student and staff well-being and 
success, and monitor and evaluate their effectiveness.   
 
DEFINITIONS  
 
Comprehensive School Health (CSH) is an internationally recognized, evidence-based approach for 
building healthy school communities based on collaboration between home, school and community 
partners.  A CSH approach to effective school health initiatives uses strategies from all four pillars of 
CSH as defined by the Joint Consortium for School Health:  
 
• Social and Physical Environments includes the quality of the relationships between school 

community stakeholders, the emotional well-being of students and the buildings, grounds, play 
spaces and equipment in and around the school. 

• Teaching and Learning includes resources, activities and curriculum where students gain skills and 
knowledge related to health and wellness. 

• Healthy School Policy includes management practices, decision-making processes, policies and 
procedures that promote and support health and wellness. 

• Partnerships and Services include connections between schools, families, community 
organizations, the health sector and other sectors that support student health. 

 
Wellness is a balanced state of emotional, intellectual, physical, social and spiritual well-being that 
enables individuals to reach their full potential.  Personal wellness occurs with commitment to a lifestyle 
based on healthy attitudes and actions that honour self and others.  
 
The Alberta Education’s Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education, 2009, defines 
the five dimensions of wellness as:  
 
• Emotional wellness is acknowledging, understanding, managing and expressing thoughts 

and feelings in a constructive manner. 
• Intellectual wellness is the development and the critical and creative use of the mind to its 

fullest potential. 
• Physical wellness is the ability, motivation and confidence to move effectively and 

efficiently in a variety of situations, and the healthy growth, development, nutrition and care 
of the body. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

ISSUE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

REVIEW YEAR: (yyyy) 

Board Policy 
ATTACHMENT I 

Page 27 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

AEBB.BP -- Page 2 of 3 

• Social wellness is relating positively to others and is influenced by many factors including 
how individuals communicate, establish and maintain relationships, are treated by others and 
interpret that treatment.   

• Spiritual wellness is an understanding of one’s own values and beliefs leading to a sense of 
meaning or purpose and a relationship to the community. 

 
These dimensions do not exist in isolation; it is the balance and interplay of these elements that 
constitute wellness.  For example, all wellness curricula, including topics considered controversial or 
sensitive, such as those related to family interactions; personal, family and community values; personal 
relationships; and  issues of sexual and mental health, are approached through the lens of this holistic 
definition of wellness.  This provides opportunities for students to accept and appreciate diversity and 
the uniqueness of self and others.  
 
POLICY 
 
The Board recognizes that wellness is both an individual and collective responsibility. The Board 
believes that a state of personal wellness enables students and staff to reach their full potential and to 
contribute in an increasingly interdependent world. The Board acknowledges that only by working in 
partnership with students, staff, parents, community members, organizations and government can we 
promote and foster lifelong habits that support wellness. 
 
The Board recognizes that it is subject to different legislative requirements when supporting student and 
staff wellness. As such, the Board embraces a Comprehensive School Health approach and is committed 
to ensuring that students and staff are provided with the supports they need to learn about, create and 
maintain a district culture of wellness. The Board is further committed to providing safe, healthy 
learning and working environments through prevention of personal and occupational injuries and 
illnesses, and a proactive approach to creating positive and supportive environments that contribute to 
the well-being of self and others. 
 
EXPECTATIONS  
 
1. Each school and central decision unit shall work towards creating and maintaining learning and 

working environments that support a district culture of wellness using a Comprehensive School 
Health approach. 
 

2. The District shall: 
a. consider student and staff health and safety in the planning, implementation and evaluation of 

district services; 
b. base supports for student and staff wellness on research, informed best practice and a balanced 

approach to delivery; and 
c. meet or exceed all legislated occupational health and safety (OHS) requirements through a 

district OHS program. 
 

3. School staff shall work collaboratively with district services, parents, government agencies, and 
community partners to provide awareness of and access to available professional guidance and 
counselling services for students. 

 

Page 28 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

AEBB.BP -- Page 3 of 3 

4. Curricular instruction and the development, implementation and monitoring of strategies to create 
and maintain a culture of wellness for students shall be in accordance with the School Act, 
regulations and the Guide to Education.  

 
5. Staff, and their dependents, shall be provided access to professional employee and family assistance 

services which offer assessment, referral, consultation, and counselling services.  These services 
shall be confidential except where limited by law.   

 
6. Assessment tools shall be identified to measure and monitor the effectiveness of the wellness 

strategies implemented by schools and central decision units for the purpose of local and district-
wide planning and delivery of supports. 

 
7. The Superintendent of Schools shall implement this policy through the establishment of 

administrative regulations and the assignment of responsibilities as needed. 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
The Administration reports on progress in relation to the supports provided to create a culture of 
wellness for students and staff through the Annual Report –Wellness of Students and Staff.   
 
REFERENCES 
FBCA.BP - Respectful Working Environments 
FBCA.AR – Respectful Working Environments 
EA.BP - Infrastructure Planning Principles 
GA.BP - Student Programs of Study 
GAA.BP - Delivery of Student Programs of Study 
GGAB.BP – Multicultural Education 
GI.AR – Teaching and Learning Resources 
HA.BP – Inclusive Education 
HAA.BP – Aboriginal Education 
HF.BP - Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments  
HF.AR – Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments 
HFA.BP – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
HFA.AR – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
Comprehensive School Health Approach – Alberta Health Services 
Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education  
Guide to Education 
Joint Consortium for School Health 
School Act 

Page 29 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fbca-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fbca-ar/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/e/ea-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/e/ea-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ga-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ga-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gaa-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gaa-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ggab-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gi-ar/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/ha-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/haa-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-ar/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-ar/
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/csh.asp
http://education.alberta.ca/media/1124068/framework_kto12well.pdf
http://education.alberta.ca/media/7044993/guidetoed2013.pdf
http://www.jcsh-cces.ca/index.php/school-health
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/acts/s03.pdf


 

AEBB.BP -- Page 1 of 3 

CODE: AEBB.BP 
 
TOPIC: Wellness of Students and Staff 
 

 
PURPOSE   
 
To assist students and staff in reaching their full potential by providing policy direction to create 
learning and working environments that supports a district culture of wellness. 
 
Positive and supportive social and physical learning and working environments address and respect the 
diversity within our student and staff population and are a key contributor to health for individuals.   A 
wellness policy supports the Board of Trustees (Board) in meeting its responsibility to establish and 
maintain governance and organizational structures that promote student and staff well-being and 
success, and monitor and evaluate their effectiveness.   
 
DEFINITIONS  
 
Comprehensive School Health (CSH) is an internationally recognized, evidence-based approach for 
building healthy school communities based on collaboration between home, school and community 
partners.  A CSH approach to effective school health initiatives uses strategies from all four pillars of 
CSH as defined by the Joint Consortium for School Health:  
 
• Social and Physical Environments includes the quality of the relationships between school 

community stakeholders, the emotional well-being of students and the buildings, grounds, play 
spaces and equipment in and around the school. 

• Teaching and Learning includes resources, activities and curriculum where students gain skills and 
knowledge related to health and wellness. 

• Healthy School Policy includes management practices, decision-making processes, policies and 
procedures that promote and support health and wellness. 

• Partnerships and Services include connections between schools, families, community 
organizations, the health sector and other sectors that support student health. 

 
Wellness is a balanced state of emotional, intellectual, physical, social and spiritual well-being that 
enables individuals to reach their full potential.  Personal wellness occurs with commitment to a lifestyle 
based on healthy attitudes and actions that honour self and others.  
 
The Alberta Education  Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education, 2009, defines the 
five dimensions of wellness as:  
 
• Emotional wellness is acknowledging, understanding, managing and expressing thoughts 

and feelings in a constructive manner. 
• Intellectual wellness is the development and the critical and creative use of the mind to its 

fullest potential. 
• Physical wellness is the ability, motivation and confidence to move effectively and 

efficiently in a variety of situations, and the healthy growth, development, nutrition and care 
of the body. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

ISSUE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

REVIEW YEAR: (yyyy) 

Board Policy 

ATTACHMENT II 

Page 30 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

AEBB.BP -- Page 2 of 3 

• Social wellness is relating positively to others and is influenced by many factors including 
how individuals communicate, establish and maintain relationships, are treated by others and 
interpret that treatment.   

• Spiritual wellness is an understanding of one’s own values and beliefs leading to a sense of 
meaning or purpose and a relationship to the community. 

 
These dimensions do not exist in isolation; it is the balance and interplay of these elements that 
constitute wellness.  For example, all wellness curricula, including topics considered controversial or 
sensitive, such as those related to issues of sexual and mental health, are approached through the lens of 
this holistic definition of wellness.  This provides opportunities for students to accept and appreciate 
diversity and the uniqueness of self and others.  
 
POLICY 
 
The Board recognizes that wellness is both an individual and collective responsibility.  The Board 
believes that a state of personal wellness enables students and staff to reach their full potential and to 
contribute in an increasingly interdependent world.   The Board acknowledges that only by working in 
partnership with students, staff, parents, community members, organizations and government can we 
promote and foster lifelong habits that support wellness. (FBE.BP – Health and Wellness of Staff and 
Students) 
 
The Board recognizes that it is subject to different legislative requirements when supporting student and 
staff wellness.  As such, the Board embraces a Comprehensive School Health approach and is 
committed to ensuring that students and staff are provided with the supports they need to learn about, 
create and maintain a district culture of wellness. The Board is further committed to providing safe, 
healthy learning and working environments through prevention of personal and occupational injuries 
and illnesses, and a proactive approach to creating positive and supportive environments that contribute 
to the well-being of self and others. (replaces FBEA.BP – Occupational Health and Safety) 
 
EXPECTATIONS  
 
1. Each school and central decision unit shall work towards creating and maintaining learning and 

working environments that support a district culture of wellness using a Comprehensive School 
Health approach. (FBE.BP – Health and Wellness of Staff and Students) 

 
2. The District shall: 

a. consider student and staff health and safety in the planning, implementation and evaluation of 
district services; 

b. base supports for student and staff wellness on research, informed best practice and a balanced 
approach to delivery; and 

c. meet or exceed all legislated occupational health and safety (OHS) requirements through a 
district OHS program. (replaces FBEA.BP – Occupational Health and Safety) 
 

3. School staff shall work collaboratively with district services, parents, government agencies, and 
community partners  to provide awareness of and access to available professional guidance and 
counselling services for students.  (replaces GJ.BP – Comprehensive Guidance and Counselling 
Programs and Services) 

Page 31 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

AEBB.BP -- Page 3 of 3 

 
4. Curricular instruction and the development, implementation and monitoring of strategies to create 

and maintain a culture of wellness for students shall be in accordance with the School Act, 
regulations and the Guide to Education.  (replaces GIAA.BP – Health Instructional Materials) 

 
5. Staff, and their dependents, shall be provided access to professional employee and family assistance 

services which offer assessment, referral, consultation, and counselling services.  These services 
shall be confidential except where limited by law.  (FIC.BP – Employee Assistance) 

 
6. Assessment tools shall be identified to measure and monitor the effectiveness of the wellness 

strategies implemented by schools and central decision units for the purpose of local and district-
wide planning and delivery of supports. 

 
7. The Superintendent of Schools shall implement this policy through the establishment of 

administrative regulations and the assignment of responsibilities as needed. 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
The Administration reports on progress in relation to the supports provided to create a culture of 
wellness for students and staff through the Annual Report –Wellness of Students and Staff.   
 
REFERENCES 
FBCA.BP - Respectful Working Environments 
FBCA.AR – Respectful Working Environments 
EA.BP - Infrastructure Planning Principles 
GA.BP - Student Programs of Study 
GAA.BP - Delivery of Student Programs of Study 
GGAB.BP – Multicultural Education 
GI.AR – Teaching and Learning Resources 
HA.BP – Inclusive Education 
HAA.BP – Aboriginal Education 
HF.BP - Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments  
HF.AR – Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments 
HFA.BP – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
HFA.AR – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
Joint Consortium for School Health 
Guide to Education 
Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education  
Comprehensive School Health Approach – Alberta Health Services 
School Act  

Page 32 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fbca-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fbca-ar/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/e/ea-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/e/ea-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ga-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ga-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gaa-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gaa-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ggab-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gi-ar/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/ha-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/haa-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-ar/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-ar/
http://www.jcsh-cces.ca/index.php/school-health
http://education.alberta.ca/media/7044993/guidetoed2013.pdf
http://education.alberta.ca/media/1124068/framework_kto12well.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/csh.asp
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/acts/s03.pdf


 

FBE.BP -- Page 1 of 1 
 

CODE: FBE.BP 
 
TOPIC: Health and Wellness of Staff and Students 
 
 
 
POLICY 

 
The Board of Trustees believes that employees and students who are emotionally healthy, well-
nourished and physically active are better able to achieve the goals of education.  

 
The Board of Trustees is committed to working with parents, community members, organizations and 
government to foster lifelong habits that improve the health and well-being of employees and students.  

 
The Board of Trustees encourages each school and central decision unit to maintain a supportive 
environment that develops the knowledge, skills and attitudes necessary to enable individuals to make 
choices that foster emotional health, healthy eating and active living. 
 
REFERENCES 
FBE.AR - Health and Wellness of Staff and Students  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (12-06-2007) 

ISSUE DATE: (14-06-2007) 

REVIEW YEAR: (2014) 

Board Policy 
ATTACHMENT II a 

Page 33 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

FBEA.BP -- Page 1 of 1 
 

CODE: FBEA.BP 
 
TOPIC: Occupational Health and Safety  
 
 

 
POLICY 

 
Edmonton Public Schools values its employees and is committed to:  

• providing a safe and healthy working and learning environment, and 
• preventing occupational injuries and illnesses.  

 
The District will:  

• meet or exceed all occupational health and safety legislated requirements; 
• give priority to occupational health and safety in the planning, implementation and evaluation of 

district services; and 
• work to continuously improve its occupational health and safety management system.  

 
A safe and healthy work environment is a shared responsibility among the Board of Trustees, 
Superintendent of Schools, staff, staff group representatives, as well as government, parents, students, 
volunteers, visitors, tenants, contractors and subcontractors. 

 
REFERENCES 
FAA.BP - Human Resources Framework 
FBEA.AR - Health and Safety Roles and Responsibilities  
HHCA.AR - Hygienic Practices 
HHCC.AR - Communicable Disease 
HHCF.AR - Student or Staff Suicide 
Occupational Health and Safety Act 
Occupational Health and Safety Regulation 
Environmental Protection and Enhancement Act 
Environmental Protection and Enhancement (Miscellaneous) Regulation (AR 118/93) 
Public Health Act 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (12-06-2007) 

ISSUE DATE: (14-06-2007) 

REVIEW YEAR: (2014) 

Board Policy 
ATTACHMENT II b 

Page 34 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

FIC.BP -- Page 1 of 1 
 

CODE: FIC.BP 
 
TOPIC: Employee Assistance 
 
 
 
POLICY 
 
The Board shall provide employee and family assistance which offers assessment and referral, 
consultation, and counselling services through which staff and their family members living in their 
household can have direct access to professional assistance. These services shall be confidential except 
where limited by law. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (13-06-2006) 

ISSUE DATE: (23-06-2006) 

REVIEW YEAR: (2013) 

Board Policy 
ATTACHMENT II c 

Page 35 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

GIAA.BP -- Page 1 of 1 
 

CODE: GIAA.BP 
 

TOPIC: Health Instruction Materials 
 
 

 
POLICY 
 
HEALTH INSTRUCTIONAL RESOURCES  
 
Teaching and Learning resources for health, where applicable, shall:  
• promote respect for one's physical, mental, spiritual, social and emotional well-being and that of 

others;  
• recognize the role of the family regarding the health and welfare of society;  
• strive to ensure parent and community satisfaction with health programs;  
• promote healthy attitudes towards human sexuality, and the view that abstinence from sexual 

relationships is the most effective method of preventing sexually transmitted diseases and 
unwanted pregnancies;  

• promote a balanced view of the issues;  
• view health issues sensitively, avoiding unduly violent or frightening depictions of the issues; 

and  
• promote healthy decision making that will reduce the likelihood of substance abuse. 

 
REFERENCES 
GA.BP – Student Programs of Study 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (13-06-2006) 

ISSUE DATE: (23-06-2006) 

REVIEW YEAR: (2013) 

Board Policy 
ATTACHMENT II d 

Page 36 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

GJ.BP -- Page 1 of 1 
 

CODE: GJ.BP 
 

TOPIC: Comprehensive Guidance and Counselling  
   Programs and Services 

 
 
POLICY 
 
The Board believes that guidance and counselling is an integral part of school programming delivered 
to meet the needs of all students in the areas of career planning and development, personal/social 
issues and educational planning.  
 
The Board supports the development of a comprehensive school guidance and counseling program. 
Schools are responsible to ensure that equitable, proactive, professional and collaborative guidance 
and counselling services are available to all students. 
 
REFERENCES 
Alberta Education's Guide to Education ECS to Grade 12 - page 69 
Alberta Education's Comprehensive School Guidance and Counselling Programs and Services: 
Guidelines for Practice 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (27-09-2011) 

ISSUE DATE: (29-09-2011) 

REVIEW YEAR: (2018) 

Board Policy 
ATTACHMENT II e 

Page 37 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

1 
 

Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff  
Summary of Themes and Key Points from Stakeholder Feedback and Committee Considerations 
There were 227 respondents of which 75% to 85%, depending on the question, did not have any concerns with the proposed policy.  
While the majority of respondents were positive, 15% to 25% provided comments with concerns, suggestions or commendations. 
The following document highlights themes (t) that emerged (mentioned 3 to 8 times), as well as key points (kp) (mentioned only once 
or twice) that were identified for consideration in revising the draft wellness policy.   
Themes (t)and/or Key Points (kp) Considerations and Response  
Milieu: The term milieu was not clear to some and it was felt that 
a more common word should be used. (kp) 

• One shouldn’t have to look up a word to understand an 
important sentence in the policy.   

The Purpose was simplified by removing the word milieu and 
keeping the more common term environment.  

Spiritual Wellness: There is a concern that the term spiritual 
wellness has a religious connotation and that this has/or may have 
negative implications. (t) 

• Is this inclusive of diverse values and beliefs? 
• Religion has no place in a public school system. 

 

Spiritual wellness is one of five dimensions referred to in the 
wellness definition in the Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 
12 Wellness Education document, 2009. These elements do not 
exist in isolation; it is the balance and interplay of these elements 
that constitute wellness.  
 
Although one’s religion may inform one’s values, spiritual 
wellness is not dependent on a religion.   
 

Spiritual Wellness is a personal matter involving values 
and beliefs that provide a purpose in our lives. While 
different individuals may have different views of what 
spiritualism is, it is generally considered to be the 
search for meaning and purpose in human existence, 
leading one to strive for a state of harmony with oneself 
and others while working to balance inner needs with 
the rest of the world. The National Wellness Institute 
says spiritual wellness follows the following tenets: 
• It is better to ponder the meaning of life for 

ourselves and to be tolerant of the beliefs of others 
than to close our minds and become intolerant. 

• It is better to live each day in a way that is 
consistent with our values and beliefs than to do 
otherwise and feel untrue to ourselves 

ATTACHMENT III 

Page 38 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.nationalwellness.org/


 

2 
 

 
The Ministerial Order 001/2013 also states that “an Ethical 
Citizen …; cares for themselves physically, emotionally, 
intellectually, socially and spiritually;…” 
 
The Purpose has been revised to include the idea that our 
learning and working environments will “address and respect the 
diversity within our student and staff population…”  
 
The italicized words have been added to the preface to the 
wellness Definition: “ Personal wellness occurs with commitment 
to a lifestyle based on healthy attitudes and actions that honour 
self and others” 
 
References have been added for other related policies and 
administrative regulations such as Aboriginal education, 
multicultural education, and sexual orientation and gender 
identity. 

Comprehensive School Health ( CSH) : Why doesn’t the term 
CSH appear in the policy? It should be embedded in the policy as 
this approach is accepted by health and education across the 
country as the most effective means to create and sustain healthy 
school communities. The District has been using CSH for a 
number of years. (kp) 
 
 

The Comprehensive School Health approach to addressing 
student and staff wellness is used and supported within the 
District.  The term CSH is an internationally recognized 
framework for supporting improvements in students’ educational 
outcomes while addressing school health in a planned, integrated 
and holistic way.  CSH is an effective approach for building 
healthy school communities, and can be used to address a variety 
of health issues and improve health, education, and social 
outcomes for children and youth.   
 
CSH was added in the Definitions for the policy.   
 
The second paragraph under Policy now reads…” As such, the 
board embraces a Comprehensive School Health approach and is 
committed to …” 
 
Expectation 1 now reads “Each school and central decision unit 

Page 39 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://education.alberta.ca/media/353026/csh.pdf


 

3 
 

shall work towards creating and maintaining learning and 
working environments that support a district culture of wellness 
using a Comprehensive School Health approach.” 
Reference:  http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/csh.asp  
 

Sexual Wellness/Sexual Education: The policy needs to be 
more explicit in regards to sexual wellness and sex education. (t) 
• Students need to be fully informed with evidence-based, 

medically sound and inclusive sex education provided by 
knowledgeable people. 

• Parents need to be notified about which presenters will be 
invited into the schools as resources. 

 

The policy is intended to support the teaching of wellness related 
curriculum such as the topic of human sexuality from the 
perspective of a holistic definition of wellness that integrates the 
emotional, intellectual, physical, social and spiritual (being true to 
one’s own sense of values) aspects of the topic.  An explanatory 
statement to this effect has been added under wellness in the 
Definitions.  
 
Expectation 4 in the policy has been revised to make it explicit 
that curricular instruction will be provided to students in 
accordance with the School Act, regulations and the Guide to 
Education.   
 
Human sexuality education is offered in Grade 4 to Grade 9 as a 
mandatory component of the program of studies.  Additionally, at 
the high school level, the Career and Life Management (CALM) 
course is offered and contains specific outcomes relative to 
human sexuality. 
 
 
Board policy GA.BP – Student Programs of Study articulates the 
Board’s expectation that all student programs will use “a wide 
range of teaching and learning resources that reflect and value the 
diversity in the District so that all students see themselves and 
their lives positively reflected within the curriculum”.  
Administrative regulation GI.AR – Teaching and Learning 
Resources addresses the selection of instructional resources 
appropriate for the curriculum, and the instructional philosophy of 
the school. It requires: 
• that teaching and learning resources shall be appropriate for 

Page 40 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/csh.asp
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ga-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gi-ar/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gi-ar/


 

4 
 

the program of studies, the program’s instructional philosophy 
and for the age, social and emotional development, and 
learning style of the students for whom the materials are 
selected; and 

• that schools not be limited to the use of provincially 
authorized resources, but shall use resources that meet the 
requirements of the respective program of studies. 

 
The District refers teachers to Canadian Guidelines for Sexual 
Health Education.   “Effective Sexual Health Education should be 
provided in an age-appropriate, culturally sensitive manner that is 
respectful of individual sexual diversity, abilities and choices.”  
Key elements of comprehensive sexual health education in 
schools, includes access to information, which is: 

• science-based and medically accurate; 
• non-judgmental; 
• culturally-sensitive;  
• inclusive of persons with disabilities and sexual and 

gender minorities; 
• age-appropriate;  
• focused on healthy decision making;  
• supports effective communication skill development, 

which includes teaching the meaning of “consent”; and 
reflects the Canadian Guidelines for Sexual Health Education. 

 
Edmonton Public Schools supports the lesson plans, programs, 
and information identified on www.teachingsexualhealth.ca.  It is 
an innovative website developed by Alberta educators and health 
professionals.  Their goal is to enhance excellence in education by 
providing teachers with evidence-based sexual health education 
background and delivery methods, current lesson plans and 
activities, and comprehensive resources.  Schools are encouraged 
to use this site as a reference for ensuring the goals of Alberta 
curriculum are adhered to in regards to human sexuality 
education. 

Page 41 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.phac-aspc.gc.ca/publicat/cgshe-ldnemss/cgshe_toc-eng.php
http://www.phac-aspc.gc.ca/publicat/cgshe-ldnemss/cgshe_toc-eng.php
http://www.teachingsexualhealth.ca/


 

5 
 

 
The topic, instruction, and selection of instructional resources for 
human sexuality education may give rise to alternative points of 
view and inspire controversy.  The Guide to Education indicates 
that studying controversial topics assists in preparing students to 
participate responsibly in society as well as providing 
opportunities to develop the ability to think clearly, to reason 
logically, to open-mindedly and respectfully examine different 
points of view and to make sound judgments.   
 
Controversial topics should be used by teachers to promote 
critical inquiry and thinking skills.  Teachers must ensure they 
take the time to adequately prepare for guest speakers and ensure 
a broad view and a balanced approach to the topic. 
 
The Guide to Education contains a Human Sexuality Education 
Policy which provides for notice to parents under section 11.1 of 
the Alberta Human Rights Act, where courses of study, 
educational programs or instructional materials, or instruction or 
exercises include subject matter that deals primarily and explicitly 
with religion, human sexuality or sexual orientation. Where a 
parent makes a written request, teachers shall exempt a student, 
without academic penalty, from such instruction, course of study, 
educational program or use of instructional material.  
 
Expectation 2.b. states that the District shall base supports for 
student and staff wellness “on research, informed best practice 
and a balanced approach to delivery.”  Revised and, or new 
administrative regulations and processes will be developed and 
communicated to teachers with respect to the selection of 
instructional resources for controversial subjects and appropriate 
notice to parents when a controversial subject will be taught.   
 

Assessment Tools and  Accountability:  
Concern regarding what assessment tool(s) will be used to 

The Administration will provide guidance to schools in relation to 
appropriate assessments tools for school and district purposes. 

Page 42 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

6 
 

measure and monitor the effectiveness of the wellness strategies 
and supports? Will students and parents provide feedback? (t) 

• The assessment tool needs to be effective: aligned, easy to 
administer and used to plan and implement next steps. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Clarify how this (annual report) will provide 
accountability. (kp) 

 
The Joint Consortium for School Health which supports a 
Comprehensive School Health approach recommends using the 
Healthy School Planner (HSP).  It is an online tool designed to 
help individual schools assess the overall state of their 
environment as well as the choice to target one or more specific 
wellness topics such as healthy eating or physical activity.  An 
aggregate report for a school board/district can be requested and 
used to assess district progress and inform planning.   
 
Tell Them From Me Survey(TTFM) is another assessment tool 
which surveys students on some wellness concepts in relation to 
social, emotional outcomes and physical activity.  It is an 
evaluation system that includes a dynamic web-based student 
survey and optional teacher and parent surveys.  The District 
currently has 2013-14 information from Grade 4-12 students that 
could be used as baseline data.  Additional questions can be added 
to the survey to measure specific outcomes. 
  
Human Resources is developing a staff engagement survey which 
could measure some wellness concepts for staff.  
 
The Annual Report – Wellness of Students and Staff could use 
data collected through a tool such as the HSP, TTFM survey and 
Staff Engagement survey to monitor and report on progress.  The 
Purpose statement was revised to more clearly align the purpose 
of the policy to the Board’s responsibility for creating the 
governance and organizational structures that promote wellness 
and monitor and evaluate their effectiveness.   

Staff Wellness: This is an area of concern particularly from a 
preventative stand point.  What is being done to promote a 
healthy work environment? What supports are in place for me to 
access before I have a problem?  (t) 
 

The policy speaks to proactive approaches to creating supportive 
environments that contribute to staff wellness which would 
include supporting positive working relationships. 
 
We currently have policy and administrative regulations that 
address a respectful workplace.  The Administration is developing 

Page 43 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.jcsh-cces.ca/index.php/school-health
http://www.healthyschoolplanner.uwaterloo.ca/
https://ideas.education.alberta.ca/hsc/current-projects/tell-them-from-me/


 

7 
 

a violence in the workplace program with proactive processes that 
will be rolled out in 2015.   
 
Leadership development programs have been developed which 
address supervision, mentoring and coaching of staff.  
 
The Healthy Living Program is being implemented within the 
District.  The program is a collaborative long-term program that 
provides individuals with a two-part assessment of their current 
health status and health risks, resources including lifestyle 
coaching to improve and sustain healthy behaviours and support 
in the workplace for individual health practices.  
 
 

Implementation of Policy:  Will resources/supports be 
available/provided to implement this policy and its regulations? 
(t) 
 
 

The District must implement all policy direction within the means 
available to it.   

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 44 of 138 
Electronic Package

https://www.asebp.ab.ca/about/services.html


 

AEBB.BP -- Page 1 of 3 
 

CODE: AEBB.BP 
 
TOPIC: Wellness of Students and Staff 
 

 
PURPOSE   
 
To assist students and staff in reaching their full potential by providing policy direction to create 
learning and working environments that supports a district culture of wellness. 
 
A Positive and supportive social and physical milieu in our learning and working environments address 
and respect the diversity within our student and staff population and are a key contributor to health for 
individuals.   A wellness policy supports the Board of Trustees (Board) in meeting its responsibility to 
establish and maintain governance and organizational structures that promote student and staff well-
being and success, and monitor and evaluate their effectiveness.  for providing each student and staff 
member with welcoming, caring, respectful and safe learning and working environments.  
 
DEFINITIONS  
 
Comprehensive School Health (CSH) is an internationally recognized, evidence-based approach for 
building healthy school communities based on collaboration between home, school and community 
partners.  A CSH approach to effective school health initiatives uses strategies from all four pillars of 
CSH as defined by the Joint Consortium for School Health:  
 
• Social and Physical Environments includes the quality of the relationships between school 

community stakeholders, the emotional well-being of students and the buildings, grounds, play 
spaces and equipment in and around the school. 

• Teaching and Learning includes resources, activities and curriculum where students gain skills and 
knowledge related to health and wellness. 

• Healthy School Policy includes management practices, decision-making processes, policies and 
procedures that promote and support health and wellness. 

• Partnerships and Services include connections between schools, families, community 
organizations, the health sector and other sectors that support student health. 

 
Wellness is a balanced state of emotional, intellectual, physical, social and spiritual well-being that 
enables individuals to reach their full potential.  Personal wellness occurs with commitment to a lifestyle 
choices based on healthy attitudes and actions that honour self and others.  
 
The Alberta Education  Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education, 2009, defines the 
five dimensions of wellness as:  
 
• Emotional wellness is acknowledging, understanding, managing and expressing thoughts 

and feelings in a constructive manner. 
• Intellectual wellness is the development and the critical and creative use of the mind to its 

fullest potential. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

ISSUE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

REVIEW YEAR: (yyyy) 

Board Policy 
ATTACHMENT IV 

Page 45 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

AEBB.BP -- Page 2 of 3 
 

• Physical wellness is the ability, motivation and confidence to move effectively and 
efficiently in a variety of situations, and the healthy growth, development, nutrition and care 
of the body. 

• Social wellness is relating positively to others and is influenced by many factors including 
how individuals communicate, establish and maintain relationships, are treated by others and 
interpret that treatment.   

• Spiritual wellness is an understanding of one’s own values and beliefs leading to a sense of 
meaning or purpose and a relationship to the community. 

 
These dimensions do not exist in isolation; it is the balance and interplay of these elements that 
constitute wellness.   For example, all wellness curricula, including topics considered controversial or 
sensitive, such as those related to issues of sexual and mental health are approached through the lens of 
this holistic definition of wellness.  This provides opportunities for students to accept and appreciate 
diversity and the uniqueness of self and others.  
 
POLICY 
 
The Board recognizes that wellness is both an individual and collective responsibility.  The Board 
believes that a state of personal wellness enables students and staff to reach their full potential and to 
contribute in an increasingly interdependent world.   The Board acknowledges that only by working in 
partnership with students, staff, parents, community members, organizations and government can we 
promote and foster lifelong habits that support wellness. 
 
The Board recognizes that it is subject to different legislative requirements when supporting student and 
staff wellness.  As such, the Board embraces a Comprehensive School Health approach and is 
committed to ensuring that students and staff are provided with the supports they need to learn about, 
create and maintain a district culture of wellness. The Board is further committed to providing safe, 
healthy learning and working environments through prevention of personal and occupational injuries 
and illnesses, and a proactive approach to creating positive and supportive environments that contribute 
to the well-being of self and others. 
 
EXPECTATIONS  
 
1. Each school and central decision unit shall work towards creating and maintaining learning and 

working environments that support a district culture of wellness using a Comprehensive School 
Health approach. 
 

2. The District shall: 
a. give consider ation to student and staff health and safety in the planning, implementation and 

evaluation of district services; 
b. base supports for student and staff wellness on research, informed best practice and a balanced 

approach to delivery; and 
c. meet or exceed all legislated occupational health and safety (OHS) requirements through a 

district OHS program. 
 

Page 46 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

AEBB.BP -- Page 3 of 3 
 

3. School staff shall work collaboratively with district services, parents, and government agencies, and 
community partners to provide awareness of and access to available professional guidance and 
counselling services for students. 

 
4. Curricular instruction and the development, implementation and monitoring of strategies to create 

and maintain a culture of wellness for students shall be guided by in accordance with the School Act, 
regulations and the Guide to Education.  

 
5. Staff, and their dependents, shall be provided access to professional employee and family assistance 

services which offer assessment, referral, consultation, and counselling services.  These services 
shall be confidential except where limited by law.   

 
6. Assessment tools shall be identified to measure and monitor the effectiveness of the wellness 

strategies implemented by schools and central decision units for the purpose of local and district-
wide planning and delivery of supports. 

 
7. The Superintendent of Schools shall implement this policy through the establishment of 

administrative regulations and the assignment of responsibilities as needed. 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
The Administration reports on progress in relation to the supports provided to create a culture of 
wellness for students and staff through the Annual Report – Health and Wellness of Students and Staff.   
 
REFERENCES 
FBCA.BP - Respectful Working Environments 
FBCA.AR – Respectful Working Environments 
EA.BP - Infrastructure Planning Principles 
GA.BP - Student Programs of Study 
GAA.BP - Delivery of Student Programs of Study 
GGAB.BP – Multicultural Education 
GI.AR – Teaching and Learning Resources 
HA.BP – Inclusive Education 
HAA.BP – Aboriginal Education 
HF.BP - Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments  
HF.AR – Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments 
HFA.BP – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
HFA.AR – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
Guide to Education 
Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education  
Comprehensive School Health Approach – Alberta Health Services 
School Act 
 
 
 
 

Page 47 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fbca-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fbca-ar/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/e/ea-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/e/ea-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ga-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ga-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gaa-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gaa-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ggab-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gi-ar/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/ha-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/haa-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-ar/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-ar/
http://education.alberta.ca/media/7044993/guidetoed2013.pdf
http://education.alberta.ca/media/1124068/framework_kto12well.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/csh.asp
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/acts/s03.pdf


 

AEBB.BP -- Page 1 of 3 
 

CODE: AEBB.BP 
 
TOPIC: Wellness of Students and Staff 
 

 
PURPOSE   
 
To assist students and staff in reaching their full potential by providing policy direction to create 
learning and working environments that supports a district culture of wellness. 
 
Positive and supportive social and physical learning and working environments address and respect the 
diversity within our student and staff population and are a key contributor to health for individuals.   A 
wellness policy supports the Board of Trustees (the Board) in meeting its responsibility to establish and 
maintain governance and organizational structures that promote student and staff well-being and 
success, and monitor and evaluate their effectiveness.   
 
DEFINITIONS  
 
Comprehensive School Health (CSH) is an internationally recognized, evidence-based approach for 
building healthy school communities based on collaboration between home, school and community 
partners.  A CSH approach to effective school health initiatives uses strategies from all four pillars of 
CSH as defined by the Joint Consortium for School Health:  
 
• Social and Physical Environments includes the quality of the relationships between school 

community stakeholders, the emotional well-being of students and the buildings, grounds, play 
spaces and equipment in and around the school. 

• Teaching and Learning includes resources, activities and curriculum where students gain skills and 
knowledge related to health and wellness. 

• Healthy School Policy includes management practices, decision-making processes, policies and 
procedures that promote and support health and wellness. 

• Partnerships and Services include connections between schools, families, community 
organizations, the health sector and other sectors that support student health. 

 
Wellness is a balanced state of emotional, intellectual, physical, social and spiritual well-being that 
enables individuals to reach their full potential.  Personal wellness occurs with commitment to a lifestyle 
based on healthy attitudes and actions that honour self and others.  
 
The Alberta Education’s Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education, 2009, defines 
the five dimensions of wellness as:  
 
• Emotional wellness is acknowledging, understanding, managing and expressing thoughts 

and feelings in a constructive manner. 
• Intellectual wellness is the development and the critical and creative use of the mind to its 

fullest potential. 
• Physical wellness is the ability, motivation and confidence to move effectively and 

efficiently in a variety of situations, and the healthy growth, development, nutrition and care 
of the body. 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

ISSUE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

REVIEW YEAR: (yyyy) 

Board Policy 
ATTACHMENT V 

Page 48 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

AEBB.BP -- Page 2 of 3 
 

• Social wellness is relating positively to others and is influenced by many factors including 
how individuals communicate, establish and maintain relationships, are treated by others and 
interpret that treatment.   

• Spiritual wellness is an understanding of one’s own values and beliefs leading to a sense of 
meaning or purpose and a relationship to the community. 

 
These dimensions do not exist in isolation; it is the balance and interplay of these elements that 
constitute wellness. All wellness curricula, including topics considered controversial or sensitive, such 
as those related to family interactions; personal, family and community values; personal relationships;  
personal identity, human sexuality, sexual orientation, gender and identity; cultural identity or religious 
belief; and issues of sexual and mental health, are approached through the lens of this holistic definition 
of wellness.   
 
POLICY 
 
The Board recognizes that wellness is both an individual and collective responsibility. The Board 
believes that a state of personal wellness enables students and staff to reach their full potential and to 
contribute in an increasingly interdependent world. The Board acknowledges that only by working in 
partnership with students, staff, parents, community members, organizations and government can we 
promote and foster lifelong habits that support wellness. 
 
The Board recognizes that it is subject to different legislative requirements when supporting student and 
staff wellness. As such, the Board embraces a Comprehensive School Health approach and is committed 
to ensuring that students and staff are provided with the supports they need to learn about, create and 
maintain a district culture of wellness. The Board is further committed to providing safe, healthy 
learning and working environments through prevention of personal and occupational injuries and 
illnesses, and a proactive approach to creating positive and supportive environments that contribute to 
the well-being of self and others. 
 
EXPECTATIONS  
 
8. Each school and central decision unit shall work towards creating and maintaining learning and 

working environments that support a district culture of wellness using a Comprehensive School 
Health approach. 
 

9. The District shall: 
d. consider student and staff health and safety in the planning, implementation and evaluation of 

district services; 
e. base supports for student and staff wellness on research, informed best practice and a balanced 

approach to delivery; and 
f. meet or exceed all legislated occupational health and safety (OHS) requirements through a 

district OHS program. 
 

10. School staff shall work collaboratively with district services, parents, government agencies, and 
community partners to provide awareness of and access to available professional guidance and 
counselling services for students. 

 

Page 49 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

AEBB.BP -- Page 3 of 3 
 

11. Curricular instruction and the development, implementation and monitoring of strategies to create 
and maintain a culture of wellness for students shall be in accordance with the School Act, 
regulations and the Guide to Education.  

 
12. Staff, and their dependents, shall be provided access to professional employee and family assistance 

services which offer assessment, referral, consultation, and counselling services.  These services 
shall be confidential except where limited by law.   

 
13. Assessment tools shall be identified to measure and monitor the effectiveness of the wellness 

strategies implemented by schools and central decision units for the purpose of local and district-
wide planning and delivery of supports. 

 
14. The Superintendent of Schools shall implement this policy through the establishment of 

administrative regulations and the assignment of responsibilities as needed. 
 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
The Administration reports on progress in relation to the supports provided to create a culture of 
wellness for students and staff through the Annual Report –Wellness of Students and Staff.   
 
REFERENCES 
FBCA.BP - Respectful Working Environments 
FBCA.AR – Respectful Working Environments 
EA.BP - Infrastructure Planning Principles 
GA.BP - Student Programs of Study 
GAA.BP - Delivery of Student Programs of Study 
GGAB.BP – Multicultural Education 
GI.AR – Teaching and Learning Resources 
HA.BP – Inclusive Education 
HAA.BP – Aboriginal Education 
HF.BP - Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments  
HF.AR – Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments 
HFA.BP – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
HFA.AR – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
Comprehensive School Health Approach – Alberta Health Services 
Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education  
Guide to Education 
Joint Consortium for School Health 
School Act 

Page 50 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fbca-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fbca-ar/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/e/ea-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/e/ea-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ga-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ga-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gaa-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gaa-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ggab-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gi-ar/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/ha-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/haa-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-ar/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-ar/
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/csh.asp
http://education.alberta.ca/media/1124068/framework_kto12well.pdf
http://education.alberta.ca/media/7044993/guidetoed2013.pdf
http://www.jcsh-cces.ca/index.php/school-health
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/acts/s03.pdf


DATE: June 17, 2014 

TO: Board of Trustees 

FROM: Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

SUBJECT: Annual Report - Wellness of Students and Staff  

ORIGINATOR: David Fraser, Executive Director, Corporate Services 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: Diane Brunton, Debbie Jackson, Greg McInulty, Lynn Norris, Kent Pharis 
REFERENCES:       Comprehensive School Health 

Positive Mental Health Practices in Schools 

PURPOSE 
To provide the Board of Trustees with an Annual Report outlining the supports and services 
provided to support the wellness of students and staff during the 2013-2014 school year. 

BACKGROUND 
• The information in this report outlines supports and services provided by or facilitated

through Central staff to students and staff in relation to wellness for the 2013-2014 school 
year.  This report also includes selected data that may provide further context of the work of 
district staff to support wellness.  Further information related to how services and supports 
outlined in this report may have impacted the work in district schools and classrooms may 
be gathered during the Results Review process that occurs in the fall.  

• During the 2013-2014 school year School Health Services, formerly Comprehensive School
Health (CSH), has resided in Human Resources alongside Employee Health Services, under 
the umbrella of Health Services for the District.  

• School Health Services supports are facilitated by 0.800 FTE staff and services provided
align with the CSH approach, which is an internationally recognized framework for 
supporting improvements in students’ educational outcomes while addressing school health 
in a planned, integrated and holistic way.   

• Through Employee Health Services the District completed the two-year pilot project of the
Healthy Living Program with the Alberta School Employee Benefit Plan (ASEBP). Upon 
completion of the two-part personal health assessment, participants are eligible for lifestyle 
coaching – a telephone-based program that could include access to a dietitian, an exercise 
expert and a counsellor. 

• Accountability Pillar Data 2009-2013 shows the percentage of teachers, parents and
students satisfied with the opportunity for students to learn about health and physical 
education (Attachment I). Survey results for the District as a whole, and district teachers, 
parents and students indicate an increase in satisfaction with the opportunity for students to 
learn about health and to participate in physical education. 

• Tell Them From Me (TTFM) School Survey Data supports Alberta schools to understand
students’ perceptions in outcome areas proven to support student success including social-
emotional health, physical health and academic achievement (Attachment II).   The TTFM 
data reflects the responses of 26,808 district Grades 4-12 students relative to wellness 
outcomes such as participation in clubs and sports; sense of belonging; and, positive 

1 

Page 51 of 138
Electronic Package

http://www.jcsh-cces.ca/upload/JCSH%20CSH%20Framework%20FINAL%20Nov%2008.pdf
http://www.jcsh-cces.ca/upload/JCSH%20article%20on%20Positive%20Mental%20Health%20-%20ENGLISH%20-%20Oct%205%202011.pdf


relationships. Grades 7-12 data includes student responses relative to mental health 
problems such as anxiety and depression; positive behaviour in school; and truancy. This 
2014 survey provides baseline data that can be used in the future to measure progress related 
to wellness outcomes. With future TTFM surveys there is an opportunity to add questions 
(two open ended and three to five multiple choice) to better assess the District’s progress 
relative to Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff, currently in draft form. 

• The Raising Healthy Eating Active Living (REAL) Kids Alberta evaluation is a joint project
of the School of Public Health, University of Alberta, and Alberta Health Services (AHS). It
is intended to assess the impact of Alberta Health’s Healthy Weights Initiatives and to
provide some measurable behavioural and health outcomes for children in Alberta.
Provincial data collection involved surveying nearly 4,000 Grade 5 students, parents, and
principals from over 140 schools across Alberta. Twenty district schools participated in the
survey and the results are summarized in the REAL Kids Alberta – Your Jurisdiction Report
which provides information related to healthy eating and physical activity both at school
and at home, compares district and provincial data, and provides suggestions as to what can
be done to improve student wellness in these two areas. The REAL Kids Alberta - Your
Jurisdiction Report Summary which went to the Executive Team in May 2013 provides an
analysis of the data (Attachment III).

CURRENT SITUATION 
District staff  provide school health services and supports that align with the CSH approach, and 
target three focus areas (healthy eating, physical activity and emotional well-being) which have 
been identified in research as the most effective way to positively impact student health 
behaviours, and in doing so enhance student achievement.  School health services are 
coordinated by a 0.500 FTE Supervisor in Human Resources.  A CSH approach relies on 
stakeholders (government ministries, schools, families and communities) working together to 
create and sustain a culture of wellness.  The wellness supports provided during the 2013-2014 
school year relied heavily on pooled stakeholder resources and targeted the three focus areas 
with an emphasis on emotional well-being/mental health.  

Outlined below is an update of the supports and services facilitated through or provided by 
central staff for both staff and students in relation to wellness. The update is presented in 
alignment with the District Strategic Plan 2014-2018. 

Priority 1: Foster growth and success for every student by supporting their journey from 
early learning through high school completion and beyond. 

Goal Three: Success Beyond Schooling 
Outcome:  More students complete high school and are connected to career pathways that 
support their transition to post-secondary studies or the world of work. 
• Facilitated the opportunity for more than 920 students, Grades 10-12, representing seven

district high schools, to participate in an Education and Career Fair held in Edmonton,
March 11, 2014.

• School Health Services and the First Nations, Métis, and Inuit Unit coordinated and hosted a
networking opportunity on May 2, 2014 for school counsellors and other interested staff to
connect with 18 post-secondary and community partners around resources available to
support successful transitions for First Nations, Métis, and Inuit students and families. Over
35 district staff members participated.

2 
Page 52 of 138

Electronic Package



Priority 2: Provide welcoming, high quality learning and working environments. 

Goal One: A Focus on Well-being and Student Citizenship 
Outcome: Our learning and working environments are welcoming, inclusive, safe and healthy. 
• Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff, currently in draft form

(Attachment IV), is scheduled to go to the Board of Trustees for final approval in June,
2014.  Regulations are under development.

• The District was awarded a $50,000 Alberta Healthy School Wellness Fund Implementation 
Grant for the 2013-2014 school year to further the goal of implementing a CSH approach to 
wellness district-wide.  These grant funds supported wellness initiatives such as the District 
Wellness Professional Learning Day, positive mental health learning opportunities and 
resource development.

• Coordinated district participation in We Day Alberta, a youth empowerment event that
promotes active citizenship and awareness of local and global issues. We Day Alberta was
held in Calgary on October 24, 2013 and 581 students, Grades 6-12 and educators
representing 28 district schools participated in this event. Thirty-five schools and 5,017
students took local and global action throughout the year through the We Act program.  Both
opportunities are offered in partnership with Free The Children.  Educators whose students
participated in We Act indicated the following:
o 80 per cent believe participation contributed to a greater sense of caring and compassion

in their school.
o 75 per cent believe participation contributed to their community viewing the school and

students as a positive force, and an asset to their community.
o 88 per cent stated that their students demonstrated increased confidence in leading social

change.
o We Act 2013-2014 Mid-Year Partnership Report, provides additional data (Attachment 

V).  The final full year report will be available in September 2014.
• Through a partnership with the Alberta Project Promoting active Living and healthy Eating

in Schools (APPLE Schools), 15 district schools provide welcoming, healthy environments.
APPLE Schools is a research project funded by Allan Markin, an Alberta philanthropist. To
date, APPLE Schools has supported the District with more than $3 million in funding to
support schools to implement CSH through in-school staffing of a trained school health
facilitator and funding to implement a school specific action plan. Additional supports
include research, expertise provided by the project and opportunities for professional
learning. APPLE Schools is a strong partner, currently housed in the district central office,
who provides knowledge and measurable health outcomes through supports such as school
health facilitators and mentor facilitators, professional learning opportunities, weekly apple
deliveries and an accountability system to achieve the goal of creating and sustaining a
culture of wellness using a CSH approach (Attachment VI).

• Healthy Active School Symposium (HASS), a one day event to engage and empower
student leadership to create a healthy school community was hosted by five community
partners (Ever Active Schools, Alberta Healthy School Community Wellness Fund, APPLE
Schools, Be Fit For Life, and AHS) on November 27, 2013 in Morinville. Representatives
from 11 district schools attended.

3 
Page 53 of 138

Electronic Package



 
• Running Room Games, formerly known as the Journal Games provided an avenue for 

approximately 4,000 students from 115 district schools to participate in a local athletics 
event which brought together athletes, students and families in the spirit of health, fitness 
and community at the Universiade Pavilion (Butterdome) from February 18 to March 15, 
2014. 

• Alberta Medical Association Youth Run Club, a free school-based running club for 
Kindergarten to Grade 12 students across the province is designed to get children and youth 
active. Twenty-six district schools participate in this running program. 

• In support of Mental Health Awareness Week, May 5 to 11, a district Mental Health 
Awareness site was updated and promoted to support students and staff. The site includes 
lesson plans for Kindergarten to Grade 12, literacy lists, PA announcements, school-wide 
activities and video resources.  

• Inclusive Learning social workers who are trained in risk assessment, support schools, 
families and students to access community resources when a student may need assistance 
related to emotional, behavioural and mental health issues. 

• The Healthy Living Program is based on a collaborative partnership with the ASEBP 
resulting in a five-year district-wide implementation that commenced in January 2014. The 
approval and implementation demonstrates a district commitment to promoting wellness for 
all students and staff through the promotion of healthy eating, active living and emotional 
well-being. 

• The Wellness Committee at the Centre for Education offered the following activities for 
staff in the past year:  
o Nutrition Lunch and Learn presented by ASEBP Health Advisor; 
o Living Wholeheartedly; Being in the Moment and the Power of vulnerability, Lunch and 

Learn presented by an Employee Family Assistance Provider (EFAP); 
o Zumba sampler;  
o Stair challenge; 
o Healthy aging, Lunch and Learn presented by Clinical Nurse Educator for Seniors’ 

Health; and 
o Regularly scheduled sessions that included yoga, pilates, zumba, dynabands and seated 

massage. A total of 115 participants registered in these sessions. 
• The Health Recovery Consultants worked with employees to promote staff health, safety 

and well-being.  This includes programing and services to support wellness and regular 
attendance at work. 

 
Goal Two: Quality Infrastructure for All 
Outcome: Students and staff benefit from high quality learning and working environments that 
facilitate quality program delivery through effective planning, managing and investing in 
district infrastructure. 
Occupational Health and Safety (OHS) Consultants provide services such as the District 
Internal OHS Audit, regularly scheduled OHS information sessions for central staff, and 
provide site specific recommendations to improve safety across the District. 
  

  

4 
Page 54 of 138 

Electronic Package

https://sites.google.com/a/epsb.ca/mental-health-awareness-week/home
https://sites.google.com/a/epsb.ca/mental-health-awareness-week/home


Goal Three: Building Capacity through a Culture of Collaboration and Distributed Leadership 
Outcome:  Throughout their careers, all staff are provided opportunities to enhance their 
professional capacity and leadership within a culture of collaboration.  
• Beginning in January 2014, district monthly School Health Services information newsletters

were made available to schools through the online StaffRoom Bulletin Board. The intent of
the newsletter is to highlight current resources and opportunities that can support schools as
they work towards creating and sustaining welcoming, inclusive, safe and healthy learning
environments in their communities.  It includes links to monthly newsletters and calendars
from partners such as AHS and Ever Active Schools; professional learning opportunities for
students, staff and parents; online resources and other supports; and grant opportunities
(Attachment VII).

• In collaboration with community partners, a Wellness Professional Learning Day was held
for district staff and students (Grades 9-12) on February 3, 2014.  Participants could choose
from sessions that focused on physical activity, healthy eating and emotional well-being.
Twenty-three schools and seven partners were represented.

• Two catchment groups, Harry Ainlay (February 2014) and Queen Elizabeth (January 2014),
offered professional learning days that included wellness sessions.

• Nutrition, Students, Teachers, Exercising with Parents (‘NSTEP), a not for profit registered
charity, provided hands-on nutrition and physical activity programs directly into classrooms
in several district schools. Their Eat Walk Live program offers support to teachers, parents
and students in a way that fosters professional development, collaboration with community
stakeholders, and sustainable change to create healthy habits for life. In spring 2013, the
Harry Ainlay catchment embarked on a partnership with ‘NSTEP. Richard Secord launched
‘NSTEP in November 2013 and other schools such as Sweet Grass, McKee and D.S.
Mackenzie plan to launch in the fall of 2014. Harry Ainlay Titans football team completed
the Mission for Nutrition program.  This program helped students gain knowledge about
how what they eat affects their academic and athletic performance, and included cooking
classes.

• A professional networking opportunity for dance teachers was offered in partnership with
Edmonton Catholic School District (ECSD) and Edmonton Sport Council on January 27,
2014. 

• In partnership with ECSD and APPLE Schools, two half-day CSH networking opportunities
were offered to staff on January 9 and April 24, 2014.

• A two-day Mental Health First Aid Training course was offered three times during the 
2013-2014 school year. This year, 87 staff representing 49 district schools participated in 
the training.

• Through a partnership with the Centre for Addiction and Mental Health (CAMH), Fourth R
and Fourth R Plus resources and two teacher training/information sessions were provided at
no cost to secondary teachers on January 16, 2014. Twenty-one district staff members
participated in these sessions. These school based programs support youth to develop
healthy communication, conflict resolution and risk reduction skills.

5 
Page 55 of 138

Electronic Package



 
Priority 3: Enhance public education through communication, engagement and 
partnerships. 
 
Goal One: Parents as Partners 
Outcome:  Parents are provided opportunities to be involved in their child’s education. 
Supports for parents:  
Health Talk – AHS newsletter for teachers, school staff and parents is posted on School Zone. 
 
Goal Two: Supports for the Whole Child 
Outcome:  Community partnerships are established to provide supports and services to foster 
growth and success of students and families. 
The School Health supervisor: 
• Acts as a key contact and represents the District on various working groups and committees 

such as School Mental Health, Teaching Sexual Health Provincial Working Group, and 
Zone 2/3 Regional School Health Team. 

• Facilitates connections and learning opportunities through collaboration with internal 
departments and external agencies that support physical activity, healthy eating and 
emotional well-being.  For example, collaboration amongst School Health Services, the 
Inclusive Learning Unit and Regional Collaborative Service Delivery resulted in the 
creation and promotion of the Caregiver Education Sessions (Attachment VIII).  These free 
sessions provide parents, caregivers, teachers and community members with basic 
information about addiction and mental health challenges that can impact children and 
youth.  As well, collaboration with AHS Addiction and Mental Health - Edmonton Zone, 
facilitated the creation of a document (Attachment IX) that outlines how prevention and 
health promotion staff from this unit can support individual schools and catchment groups 
to prevent addiction and encourage mental health. Key agencies/partners are included in 
Attachment X. 

• Develops resources such as “What Can We Do?” to support district staff in the area of 
positive mental health. It includes learning opportunities and resources to support staff, 
parents and students (Attachment XI). 

• Applies for wellness grants such as the current district Wellness Implementation grant, and 
works with district staff and other stakeholders to create and implement a district wellness 
action plan.   

 
Goal Three: Engaged and Effective Governance 
Outcome:  The District is committed to ongoing communication, participation and engagement 
that enhances public education. 
• The School Health Services supervisor communicates with stakeholders as required.  

Responds to questions and concerns related to wellness and highlights important 
information in a variety of ways (e.g., emails, newsletters, phone calls, staff bulletin board, 
reports for District Support Team and the Board of Trustees).   

• Provided an opportunity for stakeholder feedback on the draft Board Policy AEBB.BP - 
Wellness of Students and Staff. Responses were analyzed and feedback considered. 

  

6 
Page 56 of 138 

Electronic Package



Challenges:  
As illustrated in this report, through creative thinking, collaboration, strong partnerships and 
pooled resources, some targeted wellness supports have been provided for district students and 
staff. However, there remain challenges in promoting and sustaining a culture of wellness 
across a large district which has a diverse population, varied needs, and limited resources. With 
increased numbers of staff, students and their families impacted by mental health problems 
there is a need to provide increased and more strategic support in this particular area.  

NEXT STEPS 
The next steps outlined below are dependent on allocation/staffing in Human Resources and are 
subject to change. 
• Implement Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness for Students and Staff.
• Develop an Administrative Regulation and create an implementation plan for AEBB.BP –

Wellness of Students and Staff.
• Apply for an Alberta Healthy School Wellness Grant for the 2014-15.  This grant would

support the implementation of Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness for Students and Staff.
• Continue to coordinate Mental Health First Aid training for staff throughout the 2014-15

school year.
• Offer more coordinated and collaborative support using a CSH approach with a focus on

Positive Mental Health.
• Identify a School Health Contact at each school.
• Utilize the Tell Them From Me survey data as one tool to measure outcomes that align with

Board Policy AEBB.BP - Wellness of Students and Staff.

ATTACHMENTS & APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I Accountability Pillar Data 2009 – 2013 
ATTACHMENT II Tell Them From Me (TTFM) School Survey Data 2014 
ATTACHMENT III Information Report, REAL Kids Alberta – School Jurisdiction Report 

Summary  
ATTACHMENT IV Draft Board Policy AEBB.BP – Wellness of Students and Staff  
ATTACHMENT V We Act 2013-2014 Mid-Year Partnership Report 
ATTACHMENT VI Alberta Project Promoting active Living and healthy Eating (APPLE) 
ATTACHMENT VII School Health June Newsletter  
ATTACHMENT VIII Caregiver Education Sessions 
ATTACHMENT IX AHS – How Prevention and Health Promotion can support schools and 

catchment groups  
ATTACHMENT X Edmonton Public Schools Collaboration with External Agencies that     

Support Physical Activity, Healthy Eating and Emotional Well-being 
ATTACHMENT XI What Can We Do? 

DJ:cs 

7 
Page 57 of 138

Electronic Package



 
 
 
 

Accountability Pillar Data 
 

All charts reflect aggregated positive responses. Teachers and parents responded to 
questions on Health and Physical Education opportunities based on a scale of Very Satisfied, 
Satisfied, Dissatisfied, and Very Dissatisfied. Percentages shown are combined responses 
indicating Very Satisfied and Satisfied. Students were asked to describe their response to 
questions on these topics as Very Good, Good, Poor or Very Poor. Charts from student 
respondents display cumulative responses of Very Good and Good. 
 
 
 Year Overall Parent Student Teacher 
Edmonton School District No. 7 
Percentage of teachers, parents and 
students satisfied with the 
opportunity for students to receive a 
broad program of studies including 
fine arts, career, technology, and 
health and physical education. 

2009 81.9% 80.1% 77.0% 88.6% 

2010 82.0% 80.7% 76.8% 88.6% 

2011 82.1% 80.4% 77.2% 88.7% 

2012 81.9% 79.9% 77.1% 88.6% 

2013 83.1% 81.2% 79.4% 88.8% 
 
      

   Combined percent of respondents  
indicating Satisfied or Very 

Satisfied 
   200

9 
201

0 
201

1 
201

2 
201

3  
Parent 

All 
 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with 
the opportunities your child has to learn 
about the following topics at school: Health? 

86% 86% 87% 85% 86% 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with 
the opportunities your child has to 
participate in physical education at school? 

90% 89% 89% 89% 90% 

 
Parent 

Gr. 4 
 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with 
the opportunities your child has to learn 
about the following topics at school: Health? 

92% 91% 92% 91% 92% 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with 
the opportunities your child has to 
participate in physical education at school? 

88% 89% 88% 88% 89% 

 
Parent 

Gr. 7 
 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with 
the opportunities your child has to learn 
about the following topics at school: Health? 

90% 89% 90% 88% 91% 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with 
the opportunities your child has to 
participate in physical education at school? 

92% 91% 91% 91% 95% 

 
Parent 
Gr. 10 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with 
the opportunities your child has to learn 
about the following topics at school: Health? 

76% 74% 77% 74% 73% 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with 
the opportunities your child has to 
participate in physical education at school? 

89% 88% 87% 88% 87% 

ATTACHMENT 1 

1 
 

Page 58 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
 

 
   Combined percent of respondents  

indicating Satisfied or Very 
Satisfied 

   200
9 

201
0 

201
1 

201
2 

201
3  

Teacher 
All 

 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you 
with the opportunities students at 
your school have to learn about the 
following topics at school: Health? 

88% 88% 88% 88% 90% 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you 
with the opportunities students at 
your school have to participate in 
physical education at school? 

94% 94% 94% 94% 94% 

 
Teacher 

Gr. 4 
 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you 
with the opportunities students at 
your school have to learn about the 
following topics at school: Health? 

89% 91% 91% 90% 90% 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you 
with the opportunities students at 
your school have to participate in 
physical education at school? 

93% 96% 94% 96% 93% 

 
Teacher 

Gr. 7 
 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you 
with the opportunities students at 
your school have to learn about the 
following topics at school: Health? 

84% 85% 85% 87% 87% 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you 
with the opportunities students at 
your school have to participate in 
physical education at school? 

92% 93% 94% 96% 94% 

 
Teacher 

Gr. 10 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you 
with the opportunities students at 
your school have to learn about the 
following topics at school: Health? 

78% 78% 77% 79% 81% 

How satisfied or dissatisfied are you 
with the opportunities students at 
your school have to participate in 
physical education at school? 

92% 92% 91% 92% 92% 

 
 
 
 
 
  

2 
 

Page 59 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
 

 
   Combined percent of respondents  

indicating Good or Very Good 
   200

9 
201

0 
201

1 
201

2 
201

3 Student 
Gr. 7 

 

Are the opportunities you have to learn 
about health at school 84% 85% 84% 85% 86% 

Are the opportunities you have to 
participate in physical education at 
school 

95% 96% 96% 95% 97% 

Student 
Gr. 10 

 

Are the opportunities you have to learn 
about health at school 67% 65% 69% 70% 74% 

Are the opportunities you have to 
participate in physical education at 
school 

92% 91% 89% 89% 90% 

 
Data Analysis 
 

• Overall results for the District as a whole and District parents, students and 
teachers are up slightly regarding the opportunity for students to receive 
broad programs of study which includes physical education and health.  

• Parents of students in Grades 4 and 7 remain satisfied with the opportunities 
their children have to participate in physical education and to learn about 
health. 

• Grade 10 parents remain satisfied with the opportunities their children have 
to participate in physical education at school.  Satisfaction regarding 
opportunities their children have to learn about health remain lower 
compared to satisfaction with the opportunities their children have to 
participate in physical education at school. 

• Teachers remain satisfied with students’ opportunities for health and 
physical education. 

• Students in both Grades 7 and 10 remain satisfied with their opportunities to 
learn about health and their opportunities to participate in physical 
education, with increases in all measures compared to the results from 2012.  

3 
 

Page 60 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
Participation in Clubs 

 
The measure of Participation in School Clubs is based on a single question that asks 
students:  
 
In the past four weeks, how often have you: 
 
Taken part in art, drama, or music groups: schools clubs, such as a science, math or chess 
club, or a school committee, such as student council or the yearbook committee? 
 
The results indicate the percentage of students that participated in school clubs at least 
once a week.  
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Grade 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Student Participation in School Clubs by Grade 2013-2014 

Percent

ATTACHMENT II 

1 
 

Page 61 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
Participate in Sports                             

 
The measure of Participation in Sports is based on a single question that asks students: 
 
In the past month, how often have you: 
 Played sports WITH a coach or instructor AT SCHOOL, other than in a gym class (e.g., 
school teams, swimming lessons)? 
 
The results indicate the percentage of students that participated at least once a week. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Grade 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Student Participation in School Sports by Grade 2013-2014 

Percent

2 
 

Page 62 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
Positive Relationships                             

 
The measure of Positive Relationships is based on the following set of questions: 
 

• Do you have ‘close friends’ at school that you can trust? 
• I share my private feelings with a friend at school. 
• During the past four week, how well have you gotten along with your friends at 

school? 
• I value my friends’ opinions when making decisions. 

 
The results indicate the percentage of students with positive relationships. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Grade 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Students with Positive Relationships 2013-2014 

Percent

3 
 

Page 63 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
Sense of Belonging                             

 
The measure of Sense of Belonging is based the following set of questions: 
 
Please indicate how much you agree or disagree with each of the following statements? 

• I feel included in school activities. 
• I get along well with others at school. 
• I am able to make friends easily. 
• At school I feel accepted for who I am. 
• Schools is a place where I feel like I belong 
• Generally I feel accepted by other kids my age. 

 
The results indicate the percentage of with a positive sense of belonging. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Grade 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

Students with a Positive Sense of Belonging 2013-2014 

Percent

4 
 

Page 64 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
Anxiety                             

 
The measure of Anxiety was developed with the assistance of Dr. Alexa Bagnell, Child and 
Adolescent Psychiatrist at the IWK Health Centre in Halifax, NS.  Anxiety involves feelings of 
fear, intense anxiety, and worry about particular events or social situations.  The measure is 
comprised of the following set of statements that ask students: 
 
We would like to know how you think and feel about certain things.  For each statement 
below, please tell us how often you feel this way. 

• I am concerned about what other students think about me. 
• I am too fearful or nervous. 
• I worry about people laughing at me. 
• I worry about a teacher asking me a question. 
• I worry more than most kids. 
• I am afraid that other students will think I am stupid. 
•  

 
Students with high levels of anxiety may exhibit a range of physical symptoms, including 
dizziness, nausea, heart palpitations, a dry mouth, sweating, or feelings of panic.  For many 
of these adolescents, their feelings can become chronic and more severe if there is no 
intervention.  Students with moderate levels of anxiety would likely benefit from a school-
wide intervention. 
 
The results indicate the percentage of students with moderate or high levels of anxiety. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Grade 7 8 9 10 11 12

Students with Moderate or High Levels of Anxiety 

Percent

5 
 

Page 65 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
Depression 

 
The measure of Depression was developed with the assistance of Dr. Alexa Bagnell, Child 
and Adolescent Psychiatrist at the IWK Health Centre in Halifax, NS.  Depression is a mental 
state characterized by feelings of sadness, discouragement and inadequacy that persist for 
long periods, from two or three weeks to several years.  The measure is comprised of the 
following set of statements that asks students: 
 
We would like to know how you think and feel about certain things.  For each statement 
below, please tell us how often you feel this way. 
 

• I feel sad or depressed. 
• A lot of things seem to bother me. 
• I feel lonely. 
• I cry without a good reason. 
• Other students seem to have more fun than me. 
• I have trouble falling asleep at night. 

 
Students with high levels of depression tend to be less able to experience joy and happiness 
in activities at school or at home, and may be less able to concentrate during classes.  
Students with moderate levels of depression would likely benefit from a school-wide 
intervention. 
 
The results indicate the percentage of students with moderate or high levels of depression. 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Grade 7 8 9 10 11 12

Students with Moderate or High Levels of Depression 
2013-2014 

Percent

6 
 

Page 66 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
Positive Behaviour at School 

 
The measure of Positive Behaviour at School is based on the following set of questions. 
 
During the past four weeks how often have you been in trouble at school for any of the 
following reasons. 
 

• Being disruptive in class 
• Making inappropriate comments 
• Getting into fights 
• Breaking a school rule 
• Lying or cheating 

 
During the past year at school have you even been: 

• Suspended from school. 
• Given a detention 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Grade 7 8 9 10 11 12

Students with Positive Behaviour at School 2013-2014 

Percent

7 
 

Page 67 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
Truancy 

 
The Truancy measure is based on the following three questions. 
 
In the past month, how often have you: 

• Missed a day at school WITHOUT permission? 
• Cut or skipped a class WITHOUT permission? 
• Arrived late for school or classes? 

 
The results indicate the percentage of students that are regularly truant. 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

0

10

20

30

40

50

60

70

80

90

100

Grade 7 8 9 10 11 12

Students that are Regularly Truant 2013-2014 

Percent

8 
 

Page 68 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
DATE: May 22, 2013 

TO: Executive Team 

FROM: Tanni Parker, Assistant Superintendent 

SUBJECT: REAL Kids Alberta – School Jurisdiction Report Summary 

ORIGINATOR: Corrie Ziegler, Director, Support for Staff and Students 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: Debbie Jackson, Tricia Giles-Wang, Victoria Wisheu  

REFERENCE: N/A 
 
 
ISSUE 
The following information was requested: Provide a summary of REAL Kids Alberta -Your 
School Jurisdiction Report 2012. 

 
BACKGROUND 
The Raising Healthy Eating Active Living Kids Alberta (REAL Kids Alberta) evaluation is a 
joint project of the School of Public Health, University of Alberta, and Alberta Health 
Services. The intent of this evaluation is to assess the impact of Alberta Health’s Healthy 
Weights Initiatives and to provide some measurable behavioural and health outcomes for 
children in Alberta.  Provincial data collection involved surveying nearly 4,000 Grade 5 
students, parents and principals from over 140 schools across Alberta.  
 
CURRENT SITUATION 
Twenty schools in Edmonton Public Schools (EPS) participated in the survey. The REAL 
Kids Alberta – Your School Jurisdiction Report (Attachment I) provides information 
related to healthy eating and physical activity (behaviours and attitudes) both at school 
and at home, and compares district and provincial data.  The report also provides 
suggestions as to what can be done at schools to improve healthy eating and physical 
activity. 
 
The data in the report is organized under the following six categories: healthy eating, 
physical activity, healthy living, healthy home environment, technology, and school 
environment. Analysis of the data indicates the following: 
 
Healthy Eating 
• Students in EPS were consistent or slightly lower than the province in healthy eating.  

Typically, students in Alberta are not consuming sufficient quantities of fruits, 
vegetables and whole grains as suggested by the Alberta Food Guide. 

• Students in EPS reported buying significantly less non-nutritional snacks in schools 
compared to the province, and there is a decrease since 2008 in both EPS and the 
province. 

 
 

ATTACHMENT III 

1 
 

Page 69 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
Physical Activity 
• More students walked or biked to school in EPS compared to the rest of the province.  

Students across the province are increasing their activity level since 2008 in both 
structured and unstructured activities; however, students in the province are generally 
more active with respect to structured and unstructured activities than students in 
EPS. 

Healthy Living 
• Students and parents in EPS and across the province generally believe that exercise 

and healthy eating have an impact on the health of the individual. 
 
Healthy Home Environment 
• As compared to the province, more families in EPS struggle financially to feed their 

families.  Access to fresh fruits and vegetables in the neighbourhood or community is 
decreasing across the province. 

 
Technology 
• The amount of screen time students reported in EPS is higher than the rest of the 

province and continues to increase provincially.  Eating in front of the TV has 
increased in the last two years in EPS.  The greatest amount of screen time is television 
viewing. 

 
School Environment 
• EPS principals agree with principals across the province that guidelines for daily 

physical activity (DPA) and healthy eating should be adhered to and the majority of 
schools have policies and/or guidelines in place.  DPA across the province has 
increased since 2008.  Although EPS led the province in DPA up to 2010, the District 
has fallen behind in 2012. 

 
KEY POINTS 
• Overall, EPS is consistent with, or slightly lower than the province in all six categories. 
• Among Grade 5 students in Alberta, the vast majority are not meeting the 

recommended DPA levels. 
• Among Grade 5 students in Alberta, the vast majority are not meeting Canada’s Food 

Guide recommendations. Specifically, they are not consuming sufficient quantities of 
fruits, vegetables and whole grains. 
 

ATTACHMENTS & APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I Your School Jurisdiction Report 2012  
 
DJ:ac 
 

2 
 

Page 70 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

ATTACHMENT I 

1 
 Page 71 of 138 

Electronic Package



 

2 
 Page 72 of 138 

Electronic Package



 

3 
 

Page 73 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

4 
 

Page 74 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

5 
 

Page 75 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

6 
 

Page 76 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

7 
 

Page 77 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

8 
 

Page 78 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

9 
 

Page 79 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

10 
 

Page 80 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

11 
 

Page 81 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

12 
 

Page 82 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

13 
 

Page 83 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

14 
 

Page 84 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

15 
 

Page 85 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

16 
 

Page 86 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

17 
 

Page 87 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 
18 

 
Page 88 of 138 

Electronic Package



 
 
 
CODE: AEBB.BP 
 
TOPIC: Wellness of Students and Staff 
 

 
PURPOSE   
 
To assist students and staff in reaching their full potential by providing policy 
direction to create learning and working environments that supports a district 
culture of wellness. 
 
Positive and supportive social and physical learning and working environments 
address and respect the diversity within our student and staff population and are a 
key contributor to health for individuals.   A wellness policy supports the Board of 
Trustees in meeting its responsibility to establish and maintain governance and 
organizational structures that promote student and staff well-being and success, 
and monitor and evaluate their effectiveness.   
 
DEFINITIONS  
 
Comprehensive School Health (CSH) is an internationally recognized, evidence-
based approach for building healthy school communities based on collaboration 
between home, school and community partners.  A CSH approach to effective school 
health initiatives uses strategies from all four pillars of CSH as defined by the Joint 
Consortium for School Health:  
 
• Social and Physical Environments includes the quality of the relationships 

between school community stakeholders, the emotional well-being of students 
and the buildings, grounds, play spaces and equipment in and around the school. 

• Teaching and Learning includes resources, activities and curriculum where 
students gain skills and knowledge related to health and wellness. 

• Healthy School Policy includes management practices, decision-making 
processes, policies and procedures that promote and support health and 
wellness. 

• Partnerships and Services include connections between schools, families, 
community organizations, the health sector and other sectors that support 
student health. 

 
Wellness is a balanced state of emotional, intellectual, physical, social and spiritual 
well-being that enables individuals to reach their full potential.  Personal wellness 
occurs with commitment to a lifestyle based on healthy attitudes and actions that 
honour self and others.  
 
The Alberta Education - Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness 
Education, 2009, defines the five dimensions of wellness as:  
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

ISSUE DATE: (dd-mm-yyyy) 

REVIEW YEAR: (yyyy) 

Board Policy 

ATTACHMENT IV 

1 
 

Page 89 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.jcsh-cces.ca/index.php/school-health
http://www.jcsh-cces.ca/index.php/school-health


 

• Emotional wellness is acknowledging, understanding, managing and 
expressing thoughts and feelings in a constructive manner. 

• Intellectual wellness is the development and the critical and creative 
use of the mind to its fullest potential. 

• Physical wellness is the ability, motivation and confidence to move 
effectively and efficiently in a variety of situations, and the healthy 
growth, development, nutrition and care of the body. 

• Social wellness is relating positively to others and is influenced by 
many factors including how individuals communicate, establish and 
maintain relationships, are treated by others and interpret that 
treatment.   

• Spiritual wellness is an understanding of one’s own values and 
beliefs leading to a sense of meaning or purpose and a relationship to 
the community. 

 
These dimensions do not exist in isolation; it is the balance and interplay of these 
elements that constitute wellness.   All wellness curricula, including topics 
considered controversial or sensitive, such as those related to family interactions; 
personal, family and community values; personal relationships; and issues of sexual 
and mental health are approached through the lens of this holistic definition of 
wellness. 
 
POLICY 
 
The Board of Trustees (the Board) recognizes that wellness is both an individual 
and collective responsibility.  The Board believes that a state of personal wellness 
enables students and staff to reach their full potential and to contribute in an 
increasingly interdependent world.   The Board acknowledges that only by working 
in partnership with students, staff, parents, community members, organizations and 
government can we promote and foster lifelong habits that support wellness. 
 
The Board recognizes that it is subject to different legislative requirements when 
supporting student and staff wellness.  As such, the Board embraces a 
Comprehensive School Health approach and is committed to ensuring that students 
and staff are provided with the supports they need to learn about, create and 
maintain a district culture of wellness. The Board is further committed to providing 
safe, healthy learning and working environments through prevention of personal 
and occupational injuries and illnesses, and a proactive approach to creating 
positive and supportive environments that contribute to the well-being of self and 
others. 
 
EXPECTATIONS  
 
1. Each school and central decision unit shall work towards creating and 

maintaining learning and working environments that support a district culture 
of wellness using a Comprehensive School Health approach. 
 

2. The District shall: 
2 

 
Page 90 of 138 

Electronic Package



 

a. consider student and staff health and safety in the planning, implementation 
and evaluation of district services; 

b. base supports for student and staff wellness on research, informed best 
practice and a balanced approach to delivery; and 

c. meet or exceed all legislated occupational health and safety (OHS) 
requirements through a district OHS program. 
 

3. School staff shall work collaboratively with district services, parents, 
government agencies, and community partners to provide awareness of and 
access to available professional guidance and counselling services for students. 

 
4. Curricular instruction and the development, implementation and monitoring of 

strategies to create and maintain a culture of wellness for students shall be in 
accordance with the School Act, regulations and the Guide to Education.  

 
5. Staff, and their dependents, shall be provided access to professional employee 

and family assistance services which offer assessment, referral, consultation, and 
counselling services.  These services shall be confidential except where limited 
by law.   

 
6. Assessment tools shall be identified to measure and monitor the effectiveness of 

the wellness strategies implemented by schools and central decision units for 
the purpose of local and district-wide planning and delivery of supports. 

 
7. The Superintendent of Schools shall implement this policy through the 

establishment of administrative regulations and the assignment of 
responsibilities as needed. 

 
ACCOUNTABILITY 
 
The Administration reports on progress in relation to the supports provided to 
create a culture of wellness for students and staff through the Annual Report –
Wellness of Students and Staff.   
 
REFERENCES 
FBCA.BP - Respectful Working Environments 
FBCA.AR – Respectful Working Environments 
EA.BP - Infrastructure Planning Principles 
GA.BP - Student Programs of Study 
GAA.BP - Delivery of Student Programs of Study 
GGAB.BP – Multicultural Education 
GI.AR – Teaching and Learning Resources 
HA.BP – Inclusive Education 
HAA.BP – Aboriginal Education 
HF.BP - Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments  
HF.AR – Safe, Caring and Respectful Learning Environments 
HFA.BP – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
HFA.AR – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 

3 
 

Page 91 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fbca-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/f/fbca-ar/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/e/ea-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/e/ea-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ga-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ga-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gaa-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gaa-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/ggab-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/g/gi-ar/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/ha-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/haa-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hf-ar/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-bp/
http://epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-ar/


 

Guide to Education 
Framework for Kindergarten to Grade 12 Wellness Education  
Comprehensive School Health Approach – Alberta Health Services 
School Act 

4 
 

Page 92 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://education.alberta.ca/media/7044993/guidetoed2013.pdf
http://education.alberta.ca/media/1124068/framework_kto12well.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/csh.asp
http://www.qp.alberta.ca/documents/acts/s03.pdf


 

 

We Act 2013/2014 Mid-Year Partnership Report 
Edmonton Public Schools 

 
 
We are pleased to provide this mid-year report to all 2013/2014 Educational Partners. Your 
partnership helps to empower students to make positive changes in their schools and local 
community, fostering the next generation of global citizens. 

 
This report highlights We Act Program participation, along with program components that have 
been implemented so far this year. 

 
The Edmonton Public Schools (EPSB) commitment to collaborate with Free The Children has 
helped to support the We Act program in their schools. At this mid-year mark, EPSB’s 
partnership has resulted in: 

 
• 35 schools and 5017 students who took local and global action with We Act. 
• 581 students and educators attended We Day Alberta 
• 17 schools collected 7467.21 lbs of food to fight local hunger with We Scare Hunger 
• 13 schools supporting education projects through the We Create Change. 
• 23 educators attended the 2013-2014 Professional Development Sessions 

 
We Act 

 
Educate, Engage, and Empower, are the three guiding principles upon which all Free The 
Children programming is built.  This transformative process we call our Theory of Change has 
been developed with the goal of providing students with a holistic approach to social justice 
awareness and action; helping to create a network of like-minded local and global citizens. 

 
The We Act program provides the following resources, opportunities, and support to help 
educators and students in their year of action: 

 
• We Day Participation 
• Motivational Outreach Speeches & Action Planning Workshops 
• Educational Programming Coordinators (EPCs): full-time support person 
• Online lesson plans, classroom activities, and infographics 
• Global Voices: Current Event column with suggested classroom activities 
• Free The Children Youtube channel: videos library of informational videos 
• Campaigns Kit: includes campaign resources, how-to guide and sample lesson plans 

 
We believe that education is the key to change, and that change begins in our very own 
classrooms. Our library of resources is designed to build compassion for your community and 
global understanding in your students. 

ATTACHMENT V 

15 
 

Page 93 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.freethechildren.com/get-involved/we-school/bring-a-speaker-to-your-school/
http://www.youtube.com/user/freethechildrenintl


 

 
2013/2014 Action Plans 

 
Schools participating in the We Act Program are encouraged to take action in support of 
organizations and causes that they are most passionate about. Thus, We Act program is able to 
enhance existing school initiatives that support their local and global community. 

 
As part of a schools commitment to the We Act 2013/2014 Program they are required to: 

 
• Commit to learning about social issues, and then take one local action and one global 

action in support of their chosen cause. 
• Submit two online reports (Report 1 in December 2013 and Report 2 in May 2014) 

 
Report 1: Action Plan is a major component of the We Act program as it allows us to measure 
the success of our programming and helps us to share all of the amazing local and global 
actions that your schools are taking. We also want to be able to honour schools and what they 
have achieved so far by offering them support with their plans for this year. Included below are 
findings gathered from Report 1 Submissions. Included are the most popular causes that 
students have listed in planning their local and global action: 

 
The Top 10 local causes supported: 

 
1.   Local Hunger 
2.   Homelessness 
3.   Bullying 
4.   Education/Literacy 
5.   Children/Youth Advocacy 
6. Local Environments 
7. Women’s Rights 
8. Aboriginal Issues 
9. Animal Welfare 
10.  Mental Health Issues 

The Top 10 Global Causes Supported: 
 

1. Access to Education/Literacy 
2. Poverty 
3. Hunger 
4. Environmental Issues 
5. Children’s Rights 
6. Women’s Rights 
7. Peace and Conflict 
8. Health 
9. Aboriginal Rights 
10.  Animal Welfare 

 

Over the course of the year, these Report 1 Action Plans are turned into tangible campaigns and 
activities to address the causes that students are most passionate about. We Act resources and 
campaigns assist in guiding student to take action. One educator commented: 

 
“The Campaign kit has been very helpful because everything is at my finger tips and we use the 
posters around the school and I use the lesson plans in my classroom to spread the message to 
the whole school and not just the leadership students.” 

 
- Report 1, Educator Feedback, AB. 

16 
 

Page 94 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 
2013/2014 Signature Campaigns 

 
A team of curriculum developers and design experts create yearly campaigns kit, which includes 
activity  guides,  background  information,  and  posters  for  Free  The  Children’s  signature 
campaigns (listed below). Free for schools, each kit provides resources that can be easily 
incorporated into classrooms or extracurricular activities. 

 
We Create Change – Students collect coins throughout the year to help 
build a school in one Free The Children’s partner Adopt A Village 
communities. 

 
 
 

We Scare Hunger – Students collect non-perishable food items in October 
for their local food bank to scare away hunger in their communities. 

 
 
 
 
 

We Are Love – Students spread the love on Valentine’s Day by fundraising 
for Adopt A Village development projects with love themed buttons. 

 
 
 
 
 

We Stand Together – In partnership with the Martin Aboriginal Education 
Initiative, schools engage in a conversation celebrating aboriginal culture, 
and raising awareness from Feb. 24th – March 7th. 

 
 
 

We Are Silent – On April 17th, students around the world go silent for those 
whose voices are not heard. Standing in solidarity, and raising funds and 
awareness for a variety of issues from bullying to child labour. 

17 
 

Page 95 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.freethechildren.com/get-involved/campaigns/we-create-change/
http://www.freethechildren.com/get-involved/campaigns/we-scare-hunger/
http://www.freethechildren.com/get-involved/campaigns/we-are-love/
http://www.freethechildren.com/get-involved/campaigns/we-stand-together/
http://www.freethechildren.com/get-involved/campaigns/we-are-silent/


 

 
Campaign Spotlight: We Create Change 

 
Students collect coins using reusable school houses to raise funds towards our collective goal of 
building 200 schools and improving access to education in developing communities around the 
world. Every $20 in change provides one brick—the cornerstone of a new school. This year, 
2,627 schools and groups are currently participating in this campaign, 13 of which are part of 
EDSB. 

 
Spruce Avenue School – We Club 

 
The We Club led by Travis Dingle at 
Spruce Avenue has taken on the Year 
of  Education  initiative  after  coming 
back from We Day Alberta. They’ve 
been working hard with a combo of 
food, We Are Love buttons, and a 
specially designed t-shirt sales to make 
their way to the school building goal. 

18 
 

Page 96 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.freethechildren.com/get-involved/campaigns/we-create-change/


 

 
Campaign Spotlight: We Scare Hunger 

 
During the month of October, students collect non-perishable food items for their local food 
bank to “scare” away hunger in their community. Globally, We Act groups collected 1,234,130 
lbs of food – enough to feed 242 families this year! 17 participating schools from EPSB collected 
a total of 7467.21 lbs of food for the surrounding community. 

 
Spruce Avenue School 

 
The We Club at Spruce Avenue School began 
the year with their We Scare Hunger 
campaign. Not only did they collect over 500 
items for the Edmonton Food Bank, but they 
beat the record they set last year, by 400 
items! 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dr. Donald Massey School 

 
The students at Dr. Donald led by Janice 
Yaremko have been having a busy year! They 
collected over 500 items of food for not only the 
Edmonton Food Bank, but for a local school 
nearby for as well; where they dropped off 
peanut   butter,   cereal,   and   other   breakfast 
items. To really finish off their campaign they 
collected over 700 boxes of Kraft Dinner and 
created a KD domino. Check out the video  here! 

19 
 

Page 97 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.freethechildren.com/get-involved/campaigns/we-create-change/
http://send.freethechildren.com/zkgilQTtLi


 

 
Professional Development Workshops 

 
Educational Partners are instrumental in helping execute Free The Children’s Professional 
Development sessions which are facilitated by our Educator Outreach team. The professional 
development sessions are designed to help educators find way to easily incorporate Free The 
Children’s We Act program and social justice initiatives into their curriculum. 

 
23 in the EPSB attended this year’s Professional Development Session. 

 
The theme of the sessions was “Connectivity in the 21st Century”.  Several discussions around 
21st Century technology were had, including a conversation on “slacktivism” (passive activism) 
and how the popularity of online activism is affecting students. Educators discussed strategies 
to connect with a generation of students who are largely online, and explored how Free The 
Children’s “Theory of Change” (Educate, Engage, Empower) can move students from empathy 
to empowerment.  Educators were led through an example of an activity available through the 
We Act program based on the theme of Inequality in Education, and discussed how this activity 
could be used in the classroom as a way of fostering connectivity between students. 

 
 
 
We Day 

 
We Day celebrates the power of young people to change the world and inspires students to 
take action throughout the year. Harnessing the energy and passion of young people, We Day 
brings thousands of youth together in an unparalleled setting to show them that they are not 
alone in their journey to make a difference. The event showcases some of the greatest social 
advocates of our time and highlights relevant issues with an empowering message about how 
youth can make a difference. 

 
This year at We Day, inspired by leaders like Nelson Mandela and Malala Yousafzai, Free The 
Children announced its Year of Education with the goal of building 200 schools in marginalized 
communities around the world. Role models from decades past and present spoke about the 
power of education in creating sustainable change in the world. The response to this cause and 
other important local and global issues has been truly humbling. 

110 
 

Page 98 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 
2013/2014 We Day Participation Highlights 

 
In the fall of 2013, over 100,000 students and teachers attended nine We Days in regions across 
North America: Toronto, Minnesota, Vancouver, Calgary, Manitoba, Saskatchewan, Waterloo, 
Montreal, and Atlantic Canada. The We Day stage featured some iconic figures and celebrities 
including President of Liberia; Ellen Johnson Sirleaf, Her Majesty Queen Noor of Jordan, Kofi 
Annan and Martin Luther King III, who opened each We Day. 

 
Martin  Luther  King  Jr. kicked  off  all  9  North 
American We Day’s this Fall 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Youth Impacts 

 
In a post event survey filled out anonymously by We Day Alberta participants, responses 
revealed increases in the number of youth seeing themselves as agents of change and the 
number of those who felt more passionately about the issues presented. 

 
• Following We Day  Alberta 66% of  students considered  themselves to  be  agents of 

change; compared to only 26% of students prior to We Day. 
 

• After We Day Alberta 81% of students talked to their friends or family about the issues 
discussed on stage. 

 
Students were asked to share their favourite moments from We Day Alberta. One educator 
recalled her student’s response: 

 
“…One of the first questions I asked students to reflect upon was what they will remember 
about  WE  Day.  One  child's  response  had  a  profound  impact:  ‘I  have  a  voice...not  just 
adults’.  WE are truly empowering the next generation to take meaningful step to make their 
local and global 'worlds' better places.” 

- We Day Alberta Survey, We Act Educator, Alberta. 
 
We Day Spotlight 

111 
 

Page 99 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.freethechildren.com/get-involved/campaigns/we-create-change/


 
 
 
 
 
McKernan School – 
We Day! 

 
The students of McKernan School 
having just experienced their 
first We Day! Since that   day   
they’ve  collected  over  $6000 
worth  of  household  items  to  
donate  to local families. Helped 
the Edmonton Food Bank with 
We Scare Hunger and spread 
positive messages with the We 
Are Love button campaign. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Educator Impacts 
Educators  participating  in  the  We  Act  program1 have  also  shared  how  the  
program  has impacted school culture: 

 
• 80% of educators believe that We Act contributed to a greater sense of 

caring and compassion in their school 
 

• 75% of educators believe We Act contributed to their community viewing 
the school and students as a positive force, and an asset to their community. 

 
• 88%  of  educators stated  that  their  students  demonstrated increased 

confidence in leading social change 
 
When asked about the impact of We Day Alberta, one educator 
responded: 

 
“Seeing the contributions that so many students have made and their 

excitement for what they worked toward is inspiring to me as an adult, let 
alone as an educator. Many adults could learn something from these 

passionate and caring students!” 
 

- Report 2, Educator, AB 
 
 
 
 

 
 

1 Based on 2012-2013 Report 2 data 
 1 

 
Page 100 of 138 

Electronic Package



 
The Alberta Project Promoting active Living and healthy Eating in Schools (APPLE Schools) 
 

Vision and Mission:  Empower students and school communities to “choose, lead and be 
healthy.” 

 
APPLE Schools in Edmonton Public Schools:  Since January of 2008, APPLE Schools 
has committed over $3 million to the schools in EPSB for staffing allocations and 
funding to support the implementation of action plans.  Schools are also provided 
with resources, managerial support, communities of practice and research to help 
build health school communities in EPSB. 
 
APPLE Schools in EPSB: 
 
Athlone School*       Ecole Richard Secord School** 
Belmead School+       Sifton School+ 
Brightview School*      Sherwood School* 
Sakaw School*       Tipaskan School+ 
Homesteader School*     Youngstown School* 
Hillview School*       
Glendale School*       +APPLE School since January 2008 
Inglewood School*      *APPLE School since September 2011 
Lee Ridge School+      **APPLE Schools since January 2014 
Prince Charles School* 
 
APPLE Schools is funded by the Allan P. Markin Charitable Foundation.  It has been 
estimated that the $14 million donated over the past six years has saved $210 
million in reduction of future chronic disease, improved academic performance, 
improved mental well-being and a batter quality of life. 1 
 
APPLE Schools2 works with vulnerable children and families in socio-economically 
disadvantaged areas. The APPLE Schools project provides each school with a skilled 
school health facilitator (SHF) with training in comprehensive school health, healthy 
eating, physical activity, mental well-being and community development. The SHF is 
allocated dedicated time for health promotion within the school. SHFs unique 
activities are designed to suit the needs of each school.  
 
Within an APPLE School, the SHF helps facilitates change through the development 
of individual school action plans, created in partnership with students, families, 
administration, teachers and community stakeholders, to meet the unique needs of 
each school.  APPLE Schools educates students and provides the knowledge 
necessary to develop confident leaders who take ownership for health and social 
behaviors.  APPLE Schools is a project of continuous improvement in which actions 
plans are modified each year based on results from the preceding year. Individual 
school action plans include activities designed to meet the needs of each school 
community. Examples include planting classroom gardens, providing healthy hot 

ATTACHMENT VI 

1 
 

Page 101 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
lunches, organizing after-school cooking classes and providing physical activity 
programs.   
See www.appleschools.ca for further information.  
 
As part of the drive for success and improvement, the SHF uses the training 
provided by APPLE Schools to engage members of the school community to 
implement their action plans.  To ensure a sustainable program, the SHF transitions 
out of the school, over a three year period, and a teacher champion at a 0.2 FTE 
continues to work with APPLE Schools to implement successful strategies.  
 
APPLE Schools is a student-driven, cost-effective, evidence-based project unlike any 
other in Canada today. APPLE Schools produces measurable improvements in 
physical activity (increased by 35%, in and out of school) and improved dietary 
habits (increased intake of fruits and vegetables). Further, students were less likely 
to be obese, regardless of their starting weight, socioeconomic background or 
activity levels – the project works for all students. Essentially, students acquire good 
health habits that could translate to a lifetime of healthy choices at home, in school 
and in the community.   
 
The APPLE Schools project motivates change and transforms school environments 
for improved learning and health outcomes in 51 school communities in Northern 
Alberta. The goal is to help school communities “make the healthy choice the easy 
choice" and the project has been demonstrably effective.  APPLE Schools is 
committed to shifting the paradigm from treatment of chronic illness to a model of 
disease prevention.  
 
Importantly, we are reaching vulnerable communities to address health inequities. 
Among the current APPLE Schools, two schools within EPSB have an FNMI focus.  
 
APPLE Schools is in demand. Kids want the project, parents want it, teachers want it, 
principals want it, and communities want it. Every week there is a new request from 
another school inquiring how to become an APPLE School.  
 

APPLE Schools are a Sound Investment for the Future  
 

APPLE Schools is a student centered and student driven project.  Students in APPLE 
Schools take ownership of their own health and demonstrate: 
 

• INCREASED PHSYICAL ACTIVITY 3, 4, 5 
• Increased physical activity by 35% (proven through the results of 

pedometer measurements)  
• Students increased the number of steps taken per day by 2-3 times 

 

2 
 

Page 102 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.appleschools.ca/


 
• The increase in physical activity occurred not just during school hours 

but also on weekends and after-school hours, showing that the students 
truly “own” the change in behavior in all dimensions of their lives 

• IMPROVED DIETARY HABITS 6 
• Students in APPLE Schools eat more fruits and vegetables and consume 

fewer calories  
• DECREASED OBESITY 7 

• Associated with greater physical activity and improved dietary habits, 
students were less likely to be obese than in comparison schools 

• IMPROVEMENTS IN LEARNING OUTCOMES 8 
• Children in APPLE Schools show improved quality of life, leadership 

abilities, productivity and learning outcomes 
• IMPROVEMENTS IN HEALTH 9 

• Evidence shows that APPLE Schools increase physical activity among 
low-active, active and high-active students  

• Children with the lowest starting levels of activity receive the most 
benefit 

• Evidence shows that the project reached normal weight and overweight 
students and those of low socioeconomic status 

• RETURN ON INVESTMENT 10 
• The demonstrated results of APPLE Schools represents a return on 

investment of $15-25 for each $1 spent on the project; therefore, for the 
$14 million invested in APPLE Schools by Mr. Allan Markin, the Province 
of Alberta will avoid $210-350 million in future health care spending 

• PARADIGM SHIFT 
• Making a commitment to a health promoting, disease prevention 

intervention that targets children and youth at a critical stage of 
development when life long habits are being formed  

• Students in APPLE Schools take the message of active living and healthy 
eating into their own leisure time outside of school hours  

• The paradigm shift to focus on health, is a concrete step to preventing 
future chronic diseases affected by obesity (diabetes, heart disease, and 
many forms of cancers) 
 

 “Having our children attend an APPLE school has helped us to reinforce the 
healthy lifestyle we try to foster with our children at home. Having a school 
community all on the same page in terms of health makes these life lessons 

easier to establish.” 
-Parents with children in an APPLE School 

 
 
1 Published in APPLE Schools Progress Report, December,2012 by Dr. Paul Veugelers, University of 
Alberta. 

3 
 

Page 103 of 138 
Electronic Package



 
 
2 www.appleschools.ca 
3 Vander Ploeg K, Maximova k, McGavock J., Veugelers, P. (2014) Do school-based physical activity 
interventions increase or reduce inequalities in health? Social Science and Medicine. 
4 Vander Ploeg K, Wu B, McGavock J, Veugelers PJ. (2012) Physical Activity among Canadian Children 
on School Days and Non-School Days. Journal of Physical Activity & Health. 
5 Vander Ploeg K, McGavock J, Maximova K, Veugelers PJ. School-based health promotion and physical 
activity during and dafter school hours. Pediatrics. 
6 Vander Ploeg K, McGavock J, Maximova K, Veugelers PJ. School-based health promotion and physical 
activity during and dafter school hours. Pediatrics. 
7 Vander Ploeg K, McGavock J, Maximova K, Veugelers PJ. School-based health promotion and physical 
activity during and dafter school hours. Pediatrics. 
8 Personal communication with Dr. P. Veugelers, April 2014.  Dr. Veugelers has conducted research 
on comprehensive school health programs in Nova Scotia as well as the Apple school program in 
Alberta. 
9Vander Ploeg K, Maximova k, McGavock J., Veugelers, P. (2014) Do school-based physical activity 
interventions increase or reduce inequalities in health? Social Science and Medicine. 
10 Tran B, Nair A, Kuhle S, Ohinmaa A, Veugelers PJ. (2013) Cost analyses of obesity in Canada: Scope, 
Quality, and Implications.  Cost Effectiveness and Resource Allocation.

4 
 

Page 104 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.appleschools.ca/


 

School Health Information Newsletter    May 2014 
The intent of this newsletter is to highlight current resources and 
opportunities that can support you as you work towards creating and 
sustaining a culture of wellness in your school community.   
The Comprehensive School Health (CSH) information falls under one of four 
categories:  

• Monthly Newsletters and Calendars 
• Professional Learning Opportunities – Students, Staff, Parents 
• Online Resources and other supports 
• Grant Opportunities  

Specific contact information is provided; however, feel free to contact me as 
required.  If you have any suggestions or comments regarding this newsletter, please 
forward them to me. 
 

Debbie Jackson, Supervisor, Human Resources, School Health  
780-429-8274 

 
Mental Health Awareness Week- May 5 – 11, 2014: Canadian Mental Health 
Associations’ Mental Health Week is a national event that takes place annually 
during the first week in May. Its purpose is to encourage people from all walks of life 
to learn, talk, reflect and engage with others on all issues relating to mental health. 
This is an important opportunity for schools to recognize and promote the 
importance of positive mental health and the impact it and wellbeing can have on 
our lives.   
 
Edmonton Public Schools has created a site to support staff and students during 
Mental Health Week (May 5 - May 11) and beyond.  The site includes lesson plans 
for grades K-12, literacy lists, PA announcements, school wide activities and video 
resources. The Elephant in the Room Campaign happens on May 9. We are asking 
students and staff to wear elephant stickers to support mental health and stop the 
silence and stigma around mental health issues.  Templates of the elephants are 
available on the site to download and print on Avery sticker labels. 
Click here to access the Mental Health Awareness Week Site. 
 
Most of the information shared this month is how to support 
positive mental health. 
 
What can we do? Physically and emotionally healthy children and youth are more 
likely to be successful in school and in life. School staff plays a critical role in 
promoting positive mental health in the school setting.  What can we do? is a 
support document for school staff. It recommends five key areas where school staff, 
especially teachers, can promote positive mental health. A variety of available 
resources are highlighted. 
 

ATTACHMENT VII 

1 
 

Page 105 of 138 
Electronic Package

mailto:debbie.jackson@epsb.ca
http://mentalhealthweek.cmha.ca/
https://www.google.com/a/epsb.ca/ServiceLogin2?continue=https%3A%2F%2Fsites.google.com%2Fa%2Fepsb.ca%2Fmental-health-awareness-week%2F&followup=https%3A%2F%2Fsites.google.com%2Fa%2Fepsb.ca%2Fmental-health-awareness-week%2F&service=jotspot&passive=true&ul=1
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmbRldtbGRuWjJwTmM/edit?usp=sharing


 

 
Monthly Newsletters and Calendars 
The Health TALK newsletter is created by the professional health care staff from 
Alberta Health Services Edmonton Zone to provide both parents and teachers with 
current health information and resources to support student learning.   Please note 
that The Health Talk Newsletter link is now posted on SchoolZone, fourth down on 
the Parent and Student Resources list by the Alberta Health Services logo. 
 
Kids’ Health – This provincial newsletter is also available in French.  Each month 
the newsletter features a couple of different health topics. This month two main 
topics discussed are Healthy after school snacking and Walk or bike to school. 
The newsletter can be reprinted in its entirety or articles can be extracted for 
reprinting as long as no changes are made and credit is given.  
 
Healthy Schools May Calendar – This calendar was created by Alberta Health 
Services  Promotion Coordinators. It includes resources, funding opportunities and 
other monthly events. Each month has a different theme and the calendar can be 
modified for your school. This month’s theme is Mental Health and Positive Well 
Being.  
 

Professional Learning Opportunities 
 
Center for Suicide Prevention (CSP) and Alberta Centre for Injury Control and 
Research (ACICR) Webinars for Teachers and School Staff - May 21, The 5 Things 
We Wish ALL Teachers Knew About Anxiety Disorders, Depression and Suicide - 
Participation in the webinars is open to anyone interested in school suicide 
prevention. The webinars are free as funding has been provided by the ACICR 
Community Injury Control Fund. Registration information will be forwarded to the 
network when registration for the webinars is open.  The archives include topics 
such as talking to parents of youth at risk of suicide, self-harm and suicide, social 
media and contagion. 
Recordings of previous webinars and resources are available here 
 
A Strategic Planning Approach to Suicide Prevention  
The CSP has developed this online training to provide public health professionals 
with information on how to develop or expand suicide prevention programs for 
maximum impact with minimal resources. The course can be completed at your own 
pace and is free of charge. 
 

Online Resources and other Supports 
How Can You Build Healthy School Communities? 
A healthy school community is one that supports the wellness of all its students, 
staff and parents and strives to be a healthy setting for living, learning and working.  
Comprehensive School Health is an internationally-recognized and effective 

2 
 

Page 106 of 138 
Electronic Package

https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmbWU5fS1hqbHdZbUE/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmbZU8tY2t4MGh5V1E/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmbMF9TbDdNcWhZdWc/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmbTzNnOGxURVh6Sjg/edit?usp=sharing
http://suicideinfo.ca/Training/Webinars.aspx
http://training.sprc.org/?utm_source=Weekly+Spark+April+18+2014&utm_campaign=Weekly+Spark+April+18+2014&utm_medium=email


 

approach for building healthy school communities. It can be used to address a 
variety of health issues and can improve health, education and social outcomes for 
children and youth. The resources on this Alberta Health Services website are meant 
to support students, teachers, school administrators, school staff, health 
professionals, parents and community members in building healthy school 
communities. 
 
Mental Health and High School Curriculum 
School-aged youth are a vulnerable population. They are in a period their lives 
which is crucial in their mental health development. Canadian youth spend more 
time in school than anywhere else outside the home. Schools are often challenged to 
deal with youth mental health. 
The curriculum guide provides a complete set of educational tools to increase 
understanding of mental health and mental disorders for both students and 
teachers.  Click here for more information or to purchase ($40).  
 
Clara Hughes Big Ride  
Olympian Clara Hughes is riding across Canada to raise awareness of mental 
health. Clara will share her personal experience with mental health issues with 
youth at schools and community organizations across Canada. The goal is to 
empower young people to understand what mental health means and how they can 
support others who may be suffering. The hope is that the next generation of 
Canadians will grow up in a society where there is no stigma associated with mental 
illness. Check out this link for more information and Clara’s route.  
 
Have That Talk Video Series 
The Have That Talk campaign offers a video series that is designed to answer 
common questions parents have about their child’s mental health, such as how to 
know if your teen is stressed, depressed or suicidal.  
 
Camp fYrefly  
Summer is officially here! Applications are now open to attend all Camp fYrefly 
locations in Edmonton, Calgary and Regina. Thanks to the amazing generosity of our 
donors, for over 10 years, they have been able to keep their camper registration fee 
at $25. Their actual cost for food and accommodation for just one camper is well 
over $300. You can apply online to become a youth camper, youth leader, adult 
volunteer or workshop presenter.  
 
Active Kids Triathlon           
Sign your kids up to run, bike and swim at the annual Active Kids Triathlon on June 
1, 2014.  Support the fight against cancer and get involved in your community by 
participating in this fun event.  
Click here to register.   Further information:  Kim Hordal-Hlewka, 780-454-4745 
 
 
 

3 
 

Page 107 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/csh.asp
http://teenmentalhealth.org/resources/entries/mental-health-and-high-school-curriculum
http://clarasbigride.bell.ca/en/about/%23opened
http://ottawa.ca/en/residents/public-health/healthy-living/have-talk-mental-health-video-campaign
http://www.fyrefly.ualberta.ca/
http://events.runningroom.com/site/?raceId=10626
mailto:kim@everactive.org
tel:780-454-4745


 

Grant Opportunities  
Grant Call Summer 2014  
The Alberta Healthy School Community Wellness Fund, managed by the University 
of Alberta, School of Public Health, is pleased to provide you with information about 
a new grant funding opportunity for projects that support healthy school 
communities. Funding for Healthy School Initiatives is provided by Alberta Health 
and Alberta Education. Interested applicants who meet the eligibility criteria are 
invited to submit applications for consideration. The objective of the grant funding 
is to provide support to Alberta school communities to enhance the health and 
learning outcomes of school-aged children and youth through a comprehensive 
school health framework.  To apply, please complete the application form and 
submit a proposal electronically before the grant deadline of Thursday, May 22, 
2014. 
 
For more detailed information click here. 
The application form can be accessed here. 
 

      
      

4 
 

Page 108 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.wellnessfund.ualberta.ca/
http://fluidsurveys.com/surveys/wfund/grant-application-may-2014/


 
 Regional Collaborative Service Delivery & Child  

and Adolescent Mental Health 
Addiction and Mental Health – Edmonton Zone 

 
 

Caregiver Education Sessions 
April – June 2014 

 
These free sessions are intended to provide parents, caregivers, teachers, and community members with 

basic information about addiction and mental health challenges that can impact children and youth. 
 
 
Supporting Students  with Anxiety  Disorders 

 

This session will distinguish between normal anxiety and anxiety disorders. It will help to identify signs that a child or adolescent is 
experiencing problems with anxiety. Caregivers will gain strategies to assist their teens in managing their anxiety, improving 
mental health. 

 
 

Date:  May 8, 2014 (Children  and Adolescents 101) 
Time:   5:00 – 6:30 p.m. 
Location: Queen Elizabeth High School 

9425 – 132 Avenue 
Edmonton, Alberta 

Room:  Cafeteria 
 

Register at: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/AnxietyMay82014 

Date:  May 14, 2014 (Adolescents) 
Time:   5:45 – 7:15 p.m. 
Location: Harry Ainlay High School 

4350 – 111 street 
Edmonton, Alberta 

Room:  Library 
 
Register at: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/AnxietyMay142014 

 
 
 

Social Skills 
 

Social skills are essential to academic success and positive 
self-esteem. It is a core element of resiliency enabling 
children to withstand hard times. This session will define 
social skills and discuss ways that caregivers can build 
positive social skills in children in the 21st century. We will 
review what you can do to support the development of these 
skills, in your child, to sustain lifelong positive mental health. 

 
 

Date:  May 15, 2014 
Time:  5:30 – 7:00 p.m. 
Location:  St. Elizabeth Elementary 

7712 – 36 Ave 
Edmonton, Alberta 

Room:  TBA 
 

Register at: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/SocialSkillsMay152014 

 
 

Register Early 
Space is Limited! 

 
 
 
Understanding Self-Injury and 
Interventions 101 
 

This session will help caregivers increase awareness about 
adolescents who may be intentionally injuring themselves. We 
will explore the motivation behind the behavior and provide 
practical strategies and resources for you to support youth who 
may be self-injuring. 
 
 
Date:  May 21, 2014 
Time:  5:30 – 7:00 p.m. 
Location:  Jasper Place High School 

8950 – 163 Street 
Edmonton, Alberta 

Room:  188 
 

 
Register at: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/SelfInjuryMay212014 

 
 
Substance  Use in Adolescents 

 

This session will provide caregivers with current information regarding drug trends as well as strategies to intervene and 
support teens that are using substances. We will discuss ways to address issues related to substance use as they arise. 

 
 

Date:  May 27, 2014 
Time:  5:00 – 6:30 p.m. 
Location:  Florence Hallock School 

16437 – 87 Street 
Edmonton, Alberta 

Room:  Gymnasium or Library 
 

 
Register at: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/SubstanceUseMay272014 

Date:  May 28, 2014 
Time:  5:45 – 7:15 p.m. 
Location:  D.S. McKenzie Junior High 

4020 – 106 Street 
Edmonton, Alberta 

Room:  TBA 
 
 
Register at: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/SubstanceUseMay282014 

ATTACHMENT VIII 

Contact for further inquiries:  Danielle Forth at danielle.forth@albertahealthservces.ca or 780-638-4170 

5 
 

Page 109 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/AnxietyMay82014
http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/AnxietyMay142014
http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/SocialSkillsMay152014
http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/SelfInjuryMay212014
http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/SubstanceUseMay272014
http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/SubstanceUseMay282014
mailto:danielle.forth@albertahealthservces.ca


 
 
 
 
 

 
Caregiver Education Sessions 

April – June 2014 
 
 

These free sessions are intended to provide parents, caregivers, teachers, and community members with 
basic information about addiction and mental health challenges that can impact children and youth. 

 
 

Transitioning into Junior  High: Ways to Reduce Your Child’s  Anxiety 
 

This session will provide information about the developmental changes young teens experience, and the challenges they face 
as they transition to junior high school. The strategies and resources provided will empower caregivers to increase their child’s 
ability to deal with the challenges of junior high school while also boosting their mental health. 

 
 

Date:  May 29, 2014 
Time:  5:30 – 7:00 p.m. 
Location: Kate Chegwin Junior High School 

3119 – 48 Street NW 
Edmonton, Alberta 

Room:  Library 
 

Register at: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/JuniorHighAnxietyMay29 

Date:  June 10, 2014 
Time:  5:30 – 7:00 p.m. 
Location:  Edith Rogers Junior High School 

8308 Mill Woods Road 
Edmonton, Alberta 

Room:  Gymnasium 
 
Register at: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/JuniorHighAnxiety 

 
 

Self Regulation 
 

This session will define self-regulation and how it is used in everyday life. It will provide a helpful review regarding the 
development of self-regulation in children and adolescents. The strategies and resources provided will empower and foster 
caregivers’ essential skills to increase childrens’ mental health and resiliency. 

 
Date:  June 4, 2014 
Time:  6:30 – 8:00 p.m. 
Location:  Monsignor William Irwin Elementary 

2629 Taylor Green NW 
Edmonton, Alberta 

Room:  Music Room 
 

 
Register at: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/SelfregulationJune42014 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Register Early 
Space is Limited! 

 
 
 
 
 

Reducing  Test Anxiety 
This session will help caregivers support their children to reduce test anxiety. We will explore what happens when a student 
experiences test anxiety and provide practical strategies and resources for you and your child to use to manage anxiety 
symptoms. Both parents and students are welcome! 

 
 

Date:  June 4, 2014 
Time:  5:30 – 7:00 p.m. 
Location:  Jasper Place High School 

8950 – 163 Street 
Edmonton, Alberta 

Room:  188 
 

Register at: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/TestAnxietyJune42014 

Date:  June 5, 2014 
Time:  5:30 – 7:00 p.m. 
Location:  Holy Trinity High School 

7007 – 28 Ave 
Edmonton, Alberta 

Room:  TBA 
 
Register at: 
https://www.surveymonkey.com/s/TestAnxietyJune52014 

Regional Collaborative Service Delivery 
& Child  

and Adolescent Mental Health Addiction 
and Mental Health – Edmonton Zone 

 

Contact for further inquiries:  Danielle Forth at danielle.forth@albertahealthservces.ca or 780-638-4170. 
 

 
Page 110 of 138 

Electronic Package

http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/JuniorHighAnxietyMay29
http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/JuniorHighAnxiety
http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/SelfregulationJune42014
http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/TestAnxietyJune42014
http://www.surveymonkey.com/s/TestAnxietyJune52014
mailto:danielle.forth@albertahealthservces.ca


 

 

 
 
 

1 | P a g e 

For… Elementary (K to 6) Junior High (Gr 7-9) 

Students Alcohol, Drugs, Gambling 
Prevention 
Lesson Plans 
Grade 3: Safety around 
household products, 
medicines and other 
substances. 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch- 
grade3-lesson3.pdf 

 
Grade 4: Data on Drugs (what 
is a drug) 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch- 
grade4-lb-lesson1.pdf 

 
Grade 5: Discussing Drugs in 
Detail AND Drug 
Deliberation (Lesson 1 & 2) 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch- 
grade5-lb-lesson-1.pdf 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch- 
grade5-lb-lesson-2.pdf 

 
Grade 6: Agitating Addictions 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch- 
grade6-lb-lesson-1.pdf 

 
 
 

Lesson Plans 
Substance Use and Gambling 
Information AND Trivia Game 
(powerpoint) 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch- 
grade7-substance-use-gambling- 
info.pdf 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/2697.asp to click on Powerpoint 

 
About Alcohol 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch- 
teacher-info-series-about- 
alcohol.pdf 

 
Marijuana Myths 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch- 
teacher-info-series-marijuana- 
myths.pdf 

 
Peer Education 
Expecting Respect 
-students trained each Oct/Nov 
- students lead 5 lessons 
(Alcohol and Your Decisions, Digital 
Citizenship, Health Relationships, 
Stand up to Bullying, Tobacco Don’t 
Get Sucked In) 

 

 
This document… Outlines  how Prevention and Health Promotion can 
support individual schools within your school system as they work to 
prevent addiction and encourage mental health. 

 
 

Support to Schools 
 

By: Alberta Health Services – Addiction and Mental Health Edmonton Zone 
Prevention and Health Promotion   Ph: 780-644-3634 

Prevention.Edmonton@albertahealthservices.ca 

 
 

Prevention is 
everybody’s business. 

 
For the most effective prevention, the messages, skills and attitudes need to 
be provided in a layered fashion. Keeping in mind that each school has many 
priorities to address our unit has suggested very concrete specific ways we could support you in the 
following settings: with students during class time, with parents, through the professional development of 
school staff and through providing web-based resource links on School Zone. 

 
Senior High (Gr 10-12) 

 
 
 
 

Lesson Plans 
Alcohol: A Conversation 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/7096.asp 

 
The Process of Addiction 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch- 
teacher-info-series-process-of- 
addictions.pdf 

 
In class: 
Alcohol: A Conversation 
Marijuana & Synthetic Drugs 
The Process of Addiction 

 
 

 

ATTACHMENT IX 

 
Page 111 of 138 

Electronic Package

http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade3-lesson3.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade3-lesson3.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade3-lesson3.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade3-lesson3.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade3-lesson3.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade4-lb-lesson1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade4-lb-lesson1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade4-lb-lesson1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade4-lb-lesson1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade4-lb-lesson1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade5-lb-lesson-1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade5-lb-lesson-1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade5-lb-lesson-1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade5-lb-lesson-1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade5-lb-lesson-1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade5-lb-lesson-1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade5-lb-lesson-2.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade5-lb-lesson-2.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade5-lb-lesson-2.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade5-lb-lesson-2.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade5-lb-lesson-2.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade6-lb-lesson-1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade6-lb-lesson-1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade6-lb-lesson-1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade6-lb-lesson-1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade6-lb-lesson-1.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade7-substance-use-gambling-info.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade7-substance-use-gambling-info.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade7-substance-use-gambling-info.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade7-substance-use-gambling-info.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade7-substance-use-gambling-info.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade7-substance-use-gambling-info.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade7-substance-use-gambling-info.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-grade7-substance-use-gambling-info.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2697.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2697.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2697.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-about-alcohol.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-about-alcohol.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-about-alcohol.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-about-alcohol.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-about-alcohol.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-about-alcohol.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-about-alcohol.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-marijuana-myths.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-marijuana-myths.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-marijuana-myths.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-marijuana-myths.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-marijuana-myths.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-marijuana-myths.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-marijuana-myths.pdf
mailto:Prevention.Edmonton@albertahealthservices.ca
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/7096.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/7096.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/7096.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-process-of-addictions.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-process-of-addictions.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-process-of-addictions.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-process-of-addictions.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-process-of-addictions.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-process-of-addictions.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/AddictionsSubstanceAbuse/if-tch-teacher-info-series-process-of-addictions.pdf


 
 
 

For… Elementary (K to 6) Junior High (Gr 7-9) Senior High (Gr 10-12) 
 

Tobacco Prevention 
Multi-grade lesson plans 
http://www.albertahealthservic 
es.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-k-3.pdf 

 
http://www.albertahealthservic 
es.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-4-6.pdf 

 
 
Key messages & lessons: 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-7-9.pdf 

 
 
Key messages & lessons: 
http://www.albertahealthservic 
es.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-10- 
12.pdf 

 
Great for smart boards 
http://www.lung.ca/lung101- 
renseignez/teachers- 
enseignants_e.php 

In class: Hookah & Shisha In class: Hookah & Shisha 

 
 

In class: Grade 6 Teaming 
Up for Tobacco Free Kids 

 
Mental Health Promotion 

 
Lesson Plans 
Elementary Mental Health 
Kit 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/7599.asp 
Mental Health Matters Gr 1-3 
http://www.education.alberta.ca/a 
dmin/supportingstudent/safeschool 
s/mhm/toolsmhm/k3.aspx 
Gr 4-6 
http://www.education.alberta.ca/a 
dmin/supportingstudent/safeschool 
s/mhm/toolsmhm/46.aspx 

 

Parents Print/digital information 
Parent Information Series 
3 Create It topics for K to 3 
4 Nurture It topics for Gr 4-6 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/2434.asp 

Lesson Plans 
Junior High Mental Health Kit 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/6872.asp 

Mental Health Matters Gr 7-9 
http://www.education.alberta.ca/a 
dmin/supportingstudent/safeschool 
s/mhm/toolsmhm/junior.aspx 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Print/digital information 
Parent Information Series 
6 Choose It topics for Gr 7-9 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/2434.asp 

Lesson Plans 
Mental Health Matters Gr 10-
12 
http://www.education.alberta.ca/a 
dmin/supportingstudent/safeschool 
s/mhm/toolsmhm/seniorh.aspx 
 
 
 
 
 
In class: Positive mental 
health 
 
 
 
Print/digital information 
Parent Information Series 
7 Get It Back topics for Gr 10-12 
http://www.albertahealthservices.c 
a/2434.asp 

 
Mental Health Matters – 

Family Postcards for 
elementary students 
http://www.education.alb 
erta.ca/media/7838003/m 
hm-tipsheets- 
elementary.pdf 

Mental Health Matters – 
Family Postcards for jr/sr highs 
http://www.education.alberta.ca/m 
edia/7838007/mhm-tipsheets- 
junior-senior.pdf 
 
Present to parents at 
schools the “Kids and 
Drugs” parent session(s) 

Mental Health Matters – 
Family Postcards for jr/sr highs 
http://www.education.alberta.ca/m 
edia/7838007/mhm-tipsheets- 
junior-senior.pdf 
 
Present to parents on 
various addiction and 
mental health topics upon 
request 

 

Page 112 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-k-3.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-k-3.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-k-3.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-4-6.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-4-6.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-4-6.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-7-9.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-7-9.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-7-9.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-10-12.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-10-12.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-10-12.pdf
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/hi-rl-tobac-reduc-10-12.pdf
http://www.lung.ca/lung101-renseignez/teachers-enseignants_e.php
http://www.lung.ca/lung101-renseignez/teachers-enseignants_e.php
http://www.lung.ca/lung101-renseignez/teachers-enseignants_e.php
http://www.lung.ca/lung101-renseignez/teachers-enseignants_e.php
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/7599.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/7599.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/7599.asp
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/k3.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/k3.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/k3.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/k3.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/k3.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/46.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/46.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/46.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/46.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/46.aspx
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2434.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2434.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2434.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/6872.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/6872.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/6872.asp
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/junior.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/junior.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/junior.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/junior.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/junior.aspx
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2434.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2434.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2434.asp
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/seniorh.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/seniorh.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/seniorh.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/seniorh.aspx
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/seniorh.aspx
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2434.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2434.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2434.asp
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838003/mhm-tipsheets-elementary.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838003/mhm-tipsheets-elementary.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838003/mhm-tipsheets-elementary.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838003/mhm-tipsheets-elementary.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838003/mhm-tipsheets-elementary.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838003/mhm-tipsheets-elementary.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838003/mhm-tipsheets-elementary.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838007/mhm-tipsheets-junior-senior.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838007/mhm-tipsheets-junior-senior.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838007/mhm-tipsheets-junior-senior.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838007/mhm-tipsheets-junior-senior.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838007/mhm-tipsheets-junior-senior.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838007/mhm-tipsheets-junior-senior.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838007/mhm-tipsheets-junior-senior.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/7838007/mhm-tipsheets-junior-senior.pdf


 
 
 

For… Elementary (K to 6) Junior High (Gr 7-9) Senior High (Gr 10-12) 
 
School 
Staff 

Professional development sessions on: 
 

Addiction and Mental Health Services in the Edmonton Zone 
Alcohol:  A Dialogue 
Destigmatizing Mental Illness 
Orientation to any lesson plan(s) …see earlier list in Student section 
Marijuana: do you know enough? (Jr & Sr Highs only) 
What the Hookah! (Jr & Sr Highs only) 

 
IMPORTANT ** Please remember health fairs are not best practices in prevention and should not 
replace specific lessons being delivered in the classroom on curriculum outcomes. 

 
Addiction section of AHS website: 
www.albertahealthservices.ca/addiction.asp 
Addiction Services Directory for AHS 
www.albertahealthservices.ca/Diseases/hi-s-addiction-service- directory.pdf 
Mental Health and Wellness section of AHS website: 
www.albertahealthservices.ca/mentalhealth.asp 
Mental Health Supports and Networks section of AHS 
website: www.albertahealthservices.ca/2787.asp 

 

 

Page 113 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/addiction.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/Diseases/hi-s-addiction-service-
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/Diseases/hi-s-addiction-service-
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/mentalhealth.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2787.asp


Prevention and Health Promotion Services, 
Addiction & Mental Health - Edmonton 
Zone (AHS) 

Edmonton Catholic Schools 

Central Contact Cheryl Shinkaruk 
Overall Contact within AHS Prevention & Health 
Promotion 

Z’Anne Harvey-Jansen 

Catchment Group Catchment Contact 
Edmonton Catholic – STAY North Ramon Flores 
Edmonton Catholic – STAY South Ramon Flores 
Edmonton Catholic – STAY West Ramon Flores 

Edmonton Public Schools 

Central Contact Debbie Jackson 
Overall Contact within AHS Prevention & Health 
Promotion 

Z’Anne Harvey-Jansen 

Catchment Group Catchment Contact 
1. CCEP Trevor 
2. Eastglen (Jennie at high school) Z’Anne 
3. Exotics (# of Mobile counselors) Trevor 
4. Harry Ainlay (Tanner at high school) Ramon 
5. J Percy Page (Tanner at high school MHCB) Crystal 
6. Jasper Place (Jenn B at high school MHCB) Jennifer P 
7. Lillian Osborne (Michell C high school MHCB) Ramon 
8. M E Lazerte Laurie 
9. Mc Nally Z’Anne 
10. Queen Elizabeth (Jenn B at high school) Laurie 
11. Ross Shepphard Jennifer P 
12. Strathcona Ramon 
13. WP Wagner (Michell C at high school) Crystal 
** These Catchment Groups include elementary, junior highs that feed into the high school as 
well. 

Prevention & Health Promotion, AHS Addiction and Mental Health AHS staff: 

Crystal Cleland  780-415-0051 
Jennifer Pollard 780-415-2542 
Laurie Young 780-644-3629 
Ramon Flores 780-644-3624 
Trevor Vezina 780-644-3634 
Z’Anne Harvey-Jansen   780-644-3633 

Firstname.lastname@albertahealthservices.ca Serving Schools (2013-2014) v2 

Page 114 of 138
Electronic Package

mailto:Firstname.lastname@albertahealthservices.ca


 

Edmonton Public Schools Collaboration with External Agencies/Partners that 
Support Healthy Eating, Physical Activity, and Emotional Well-being. 
 

Alberta Health Services (AHS):   guides teachers, childcare staff and parents to the information/ 
resources they need on student/child health issues. 
 
Alberta Healthy School Community Wellness Fund: A joint initiative between Alberta Health, 
the Centre for Health Promotion Studies and Alberta Coalition for Healthy School Communities. 
 
Alberta Project Promoting active Living and healthy Eating (APPLE Schools) is helping to 
define effective ways to create healthy school communities in Alberta. 
 
Alberta School Employee Benefit Plan (ASEBP): is a holistic health organization committed to 
creating resources designed to foster healthy lifestyles and healthy workplaces. Their goal is to 
support individuals in their efforts to make the educational experiences of Alberta’s students the 
best they can be. 
 
Be Fit For Life: The Provincial Fitness Unit of Alberta is one of Canada’s longest-standing not 
for profit organizations working to promote healthy active lifestyles for all Albertans. The 
Network provides accessibility to services, education and resources that encourage self-
responsibility in Albertans to adopt active, healthy lifestyles. 
 
Centre for Addiction and Mental Health (CAMH): With partners across the province and 
country,  CAMH is involved in health promotion and prevention research for youth in schools 
and the broader community. They support the implementation of Fourth R - a school based 
program to prevent adolescent violence and related risk behaviours. 
 
Edmonton Catholic School District (ECSD): provides Catholic education which addresses the 
needs of the whole child (spiritual, academic, physical, emotional and social) in their 88 schools. 

Edmonton Sport Council: is a non-profit society, serving and representing the Edmonton sport 
community that strengthens sport in Edmonton to facilitate a better sport environment in 
Edmonton. 

Evan Grykuliak Memorial Society:  Their mission is to raise awareness and encourage activities 
that support bullying prevention 
 
Ever Active Schools: facilitates the development of healthy children and youth by fostering 
social and physical environments that support healthy, active school communities. 
 
Free the Children:  is part of a family of organizations, including Me to We, We Day, and We 
Act, that has a shared goal: to empower a generation of youth to shift the world from ‘me’ to ‘we 
and become agents of change. 
 
Nutrition Students Teachers Exercising with Parents (‘NSTEP) is a not for profit registered 
charity providing hands-on nutrition and physical activity programs directly into the 
classroom. 

ATTACHMENT X 

 
Page 115 of 138 

Electronic Package

http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/2909.asp
http://www.publichealth.ualberta.ca/collaborators_partners/community_engagement/ahscwf.aspx
http://www.appleschools.ca/
https://www.asebp.ab.ca/
http://provincialfitnessunit.ca/be-fit-life-edmonton/
http://www.youthrelationships.org/camh_cps.html
http://www.ecsd.net/
http://www.edmontonsport.com/who_we_are
http://egmsociety.ca/
http://www.everactive.org/
http://www.freethechildren.com/
http://www.nstep.ca/


 

 
 
 
 

 
 
Mental Health Challenges - What can we do? 
 
Canadians are increasingly recognizing the importance of improving the mental health of 
children and youth with a particular emphasis on positive mental health. 
 
In Canada: 
 
• 1 in 5 students have a diagnosed mental disorder 
• 5 out of 5 students are affected by someone with a mental disorder 
• Half of all mental disorders begin by age 14 
 
Schools can positively impact students’ mental health. Physically and emotionally healthy 
children and youth are more likely to succeed in school and in life. School staff, particularly 
teachers, play a critical role in promoting positive mental health in the school and classroom. 
 
To be most effective, positive mental health is best incorporated as part of a Comprehensive 
School Health (CSH) approach: this involves educating students and their families; creating 
partnerships with community agencies; and fostering a positive school environment that 
supports mental wellness. 
 
Learn more about promoting positive mental health using a CSH approach. 
 
 
 
What can a teacher do? What can staff do? What can a school do? 
 
 
 
 
 
1.  Develop Knowledge and Awareness 
 
Make a distinction between mental health and mental illness. Learn about the signs of 
different mental problems and disorders: 
 
• Background information for Teachers -   (from Mental Health Matters) 
• Compassionate Classrooms – Understanding student mental health 
• Canadian Mental Health Association 
• Mental Health First Aid Canada (2 day course) 

ATTACHMENT XI 

 
Page 116 of 138 

Electronic Package

http://www.jcsh-cces.ca/upload/JCSH%20article%20on%20Positive%20Mental%20Health%20-%20ENGLISH%20-%20Oct%205%202011.pdf
http://www.education.alberta.ca/media/6849007/teachermentalhealthinformation.pdf
http://www.teachers.ab.ca/SiteCollectionDocuments/ATA/Publications/Human-Rights-Issues/Compassionate%20classrooms%20booklet%20COOR-79e.pdf
http://www.cmha.ca/
http://www.mentalhealthfirstaid.ca/EN/Pages/default.aspx


 

• Check the EPSB monthly School Health Newsletter for recommended resources and 
learning opportunities (Posted in the Staff Bulletin) 
• Make mental health a regular agenda item at staff meetings – discuss specific students 
and/or learn about specific mental health topics 
 
 
2.  Watch for Changes 
• Watch for behavioural, emotional, physical and attitude changes in a student (positive 
and/or negative). Compassionate Classrooms lists symptoms and causes of mental illness 
on page 8 
• Communicate your observations regularly with staff 
 
 
3.  Teach Students and Talk About Mental Health Throughout the School 
Year 
• Positive Mental Health and Addictions and Prevention Resources list, Alberta Health 
Services:  A comprehensive list of recommended resources for schools which includes 
o  Elementary Mental Health Kit 
o  Junior High Mental Health Kit 
o  Mental Health Matters – Grades 10 – 12 
 
• Alberta Health Services (AHS) –  Addiction and Mental Health Edmonton Zone, Support 
to Schools: For the most effective prevention, messages, skills and attitudes about positive 
mental health should be layered. AHS has suggested concrete and specific ways they can 
support you in the following settings: 
o With students during class time 
o With parents 
o Through the professional development of school staff and 
o Resources on School Zone. 
 
 
• Participate in Mental Health Week Activities (May 5 -11, 2014) –  Canadian Mental 
Health Association. Edmonton Public Schools staff can access a variety of resources on the 
District Mental Health Awareness Week site  . 
 
 
4.  Promote Positive Mental Health Practices (proactive, prevention oriented, 
strength-based): create an environment where students can find supportive connections, 
use and develop their strengths, and develop a greater sense of autonomy and self-
determination. You can do this by: 
• Greeting students by name every day 
• Connecting an at-risk student with a teacher or peer mentor 
• Offering students choice 
• Celebrating successes 
 

Page 117 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://www.teachers.ab.ca/SiteCollectionDocuments/ATA/Publications/Human-Rights-Issues/Compassionate%20classrooms%20booklet%20COOR-79e.pdf
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmbYzc1S3EzckZiNmc/edit?usp=sharing
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/7599.asp
http://www.albertahealthservices.ca/6872.asp
http://www.education.alberta.ca/admin/supportingstudent/safeschools/mhm/toolsmhm/seniorh.aspx
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmbd2ZRQW51Mlh0Z3c/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmbd2ZRQW51Mlh0Z3c/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmbd2ZRQW51Mlh0Z3c/edit?usp=sharing
http://www.cmha.ca/
http://www.cmha.ca/
https://sites.google.com/a/epsb.ca/mental-health-awareness-week/home


 

 
Review the  Positive Mental Health Toolkit (four pillar checklists: pages 44-56) to validate 
what you are already doing and find more ideas to further promote positive mental 
health in your school. 
 
 
 
5.  Have Other Resources Available: When a specific expertise is needed and 
additional support is required, know who can help and how to contact them. 
 
 
• Inclusive Learning: Staff can request a risk assessment from an Inclusive Learning social 
worker trained in risk assessment if school staff suspect a student may be suicidal. The 
social workers help schools, families and students by providing access to community support 
resources. 
 
 
• Regional Collaborative Service Delivery: School staff can call upon Child and Youth 
Mental Health Services (through Alberta Health Services) for support from a mental 
health therapist to assist them with students’ emotional, behavioural and mental health. 
 
 
• Prevention and Health Promotion Services, Addiction and Mental Health - Edmonton 
Zone (AHS): 
o  Prevention strategies for schools 
o  Designated contact according to catchment areas 
 
 
• 211 Resource lists: 211 produces a number of directories and resource lists with 
community resource information. 
 
 
• AHS Mental Health Supports and Services card - A Pocket Guide 
Display Help/Crisis phone numbers in an easily accessible and highly visible location. 
 
 
• Guidance Council of the Alberta Teachers’ Association – provides information regarding 
current recommended resources and professional learning opportunities. 

 
Page 118 of 138 

Electronic Package

http://www.jcshpositivementalhealthtoolkit.com/
http://staffroom.epsb.ca/around-the-district/show/5402
http://www.ercsd.ca/
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmbWTBsUDRZbWtsd3M/edit?usp=sharing
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmba2VUUXduZXhVQkU/edit?usp=sharing
http://www.211edmonton.com/resources.html
https://drive.google.com/file/d/0B4LJXSpvxnmbMWxsYTlNMnJ3S0k/edit?usp=sharing
http://www.guidancecouncil.ca/


 

 
Most importantly,  take care of your own mental health, and support one another 
by creating a safe, caring and respectful environment. 
 
District Resource 
Employee and Family Assistance Program (EFAP) provides confidential and 
professional assistance to employees and their dependents who are experiencing 
personal challenges that impact their lives or work performance. Contact EFAP at 780-
454-7364. 
 
Public Resource 
Great West Life has created a comprehensive resource called  Workplace Strategies for 
Mental Health. It includes a variety of recommended assessment tools that may be 
helpful for you and your colleagues. 
 
 
 
 
Further information:  Debbie Jackson, Supervisor School Health, Edmonton Public Schools 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
Page 119 of 138 

Electronic Package

https://www.asebp.ab.ca/for_your_health.html
http://www.workplacestrategiesformentalhealth.com/index.asp
http://www.workplacestrategiesformentalhealth.com/index.asp
http://www.workplacestrategiesformentalhealth.com/index.asp
http://www.workplacestrategiesformentalhealth.com/display.asp?l1=17&amp;l2=18&amp;d=18
mailto:debbie.jackson@epsb.ca


1 

DATE: 

TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

ORIGINATOR: 

June 17, 2014 

Board of Trustees 

Darrel Robertson, Superintendent of Schools 

Annual Report – Diversity and Equity            

Mark Liguori, Assistant Superintendent of Schools 

RESOURCE 
STAFF: Todd Burnstad, Nancy Peterson, Natalie Prytuluk, Heather Raymond, 

Rosalind Smith 
REFERENCE: November 29, 2011 Board Report – Annual Progress Reports to Board 

(Trustee Request #102) 
HFA.BP – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
HFA.AR – Sexual Orientation and Gender Identity 
Annual Report – First Nations, Métis, and Inuit Education 
Annual Report – English Language Learners 

PURPOSE 
To provide the Board of Trustees with an Annual Report outlining the supports and services 
provided to support Diversity and Equity.    

BACKGROUND 
The November 29, 2011 Board report (referenced) stated that one of the ways Edmonton Public 
Schools addresses inequity is through compensatory funding.  This report will provide an 
update on the criteria for compensatory funding, and other supports provided to these schools to 
address inequities that students may be facing. 

CURRENT SITUATION 
High Social Vulnerability (HSV) Allocation 
The HSV Index is calculated annually on a per pupil basis using the Index of Nine Indicators of 
Social Vulnerability complied by Mapping and Planning Support Alberta Capital Region.  
These nine indicators are: Education, Government Transfers, Immigration, Language, Lone 
Parent Families, Low Income, Mobility, Owned Dwelling and Unemployment.  Unfortunately 
the indicators are based on 2006 census information.  Even though the most recent census was 
completed in 2010, the completion of the detailed information section was not mandatory and as 
such, neither the City of Edmonton nor the Province has been able to update their indexes and 
still rely on the 2006 data as being the most accurate. 

Based on recommendations by the School Allocation Committee (December 2012), it was 
concluded that too many schools were receiving the HSV allocation resulting in a belief that the 
amounts allocated to the schools was not enough to actually influence programming or supports 
for students.  In addition the Committee also recommended that another allocation of $0.8 
million previously directed to four City Centre Education Partnership schools (Delton, John A. 
McDougall, Norwood, Spruce Avenue) be added to the total HSV allocation in order to increase 
the total amount available to all eligible schools.  Therefore, effective for 2013-2014, the 

Page 120 of 138 
Electronic Package

http://files.epsb.ca/archive/board/november292011_agenda.shtml
http://files.epsb.ca/archive/board/november292011_agenda.shtml
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-bp/
http://www.epsb.ca/ourdistrict/policy/h/hfa-ar/
http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2013-14/june10/03-AnnualReport-FirstNations,MetisandInuitEducation.pdf
http://www.epsb.ca/media/epsb/ourdistrict/boardoftrustees/boardmeetings/2013-14/june10/04-AnnualReport-EnglishLanguageLearners.pdf


 

2 
 

allocation rate was increased from 20 per cent to 30 per cent of the total student population 
(resulting in a decrease in the number of schools receiving the allocation: 78 in 2012-2013 to 60 
in 2013-2014).  At the same time, the total amount available for allocation increased from $3.1 
million to $4.0 million.  Also in 2013-2014 a new base allocation was initiated that provided a 
“base amount” for schools and has helped to mitigate removal of the HSV allocation to the 18 
schools that previously received this allocation. 
 
For 2013-2014, 60 schools received the HSV Allocation.  These schools range from having 94 
per cent of the total student population meeting criteria to 30 per cent (Attachment I).  The 
District did not allocate social vulnerability resources to schools with less than 30 per cent 
identified students.  The total dollars allocated for 2013-2014 was $4.0 million in support of 
8,762 students.  This allocation was not targeted to a specific strategy or action.  Schools may 
have used the allocation for some of the following: create smaller class sizes, provide additional 
support staff to assist in classrooms and throughout the school and/or purchase of additional 
educational materials, etc. 
 
First Nations, Métis, and Inuit and English Language Learners Allocations 
In 2013-2014, for the first time, schools received an allocation based on the number of self-
identified First Nations, Métis, and Inuit students enrolled at their schools.  A copy of the First 
Nations, Métis, and Inuit Allocation for 2013-2014 has been included as Attachment II.  The 
proposed First Nations, Métis, and Inuit Allocation for 2014-2015 has been included as 
Attachment III.  During the annual Results Review process in the fall, principals are able to 
report on how the allocation was spent and what results were achieved. Full reporting of District 
work related to supporting First Nations, Metis, and Inuit Education is available in the 2014 
Aboriginal Education Report. 
 
In 2013-2014 the Province reduced the number of years funding allocated for eligible English 
Language Learners (ELL) from seven years to five years.  Factoring in this change, the 2013-
2014 budget for ELL funding was $14.3 million. Schools received an allocation for students 
based on enrolment to support programming and purchase resources.  The number of students 
identified and coded as ELL has increased from 9,597 students in 2008-2009 to 18,278 students 
in 2013-2014.  Full reporting of District work related to support ELL is available in the 2014 
English Language Learners Annual Report. 
 
Outlined below is an update of the supports and services provided by central staff to schools 
with a direct connection to the new priorities and goals outlined in the District’s Strategic Plan. 
 
Priority 1:  Foster growth and success for every student by supporting their journey from 
early learning through high school completion and beyond. 
 
Goal One: An Excellent Start to Learning 
Outcome: More children enter Grade One reaching emotional, social, intellectual and physical 
development milestones.  
• Alberta Education provides two years of funding for ELL children prior to Grade 1. 

Edmonton Public School Board (EPSB) provides pre-kindergarten programming for 155 
ELL children through 10 schools offering Early Learning classes, and 1,481 ELL children 
are currently enrolled in Kindergarten. Inclusive Learning provides supports and services 

Page 121 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

3 
 

for ELL children in Early Learning and Kindergarten with the exception of the 10 schools 
with Early Education sites who provide internal support to their Kindergarten classes and 
any ELL children enrolled in an Early Education program.  An information sheet detailing 
the differences between Early Education and Early Learning is provided in Attachment IV. 

• Currently Early Learning classes are only available to children who reside in the attendance 
area of a school offering Early Learning. These 10 schools are located in communities with 
diverse and vulnerable populations. 

• To address the challenge of availability, sustainability, and access to two years of ELL 
programming for all children eligible for provincial ELL funding, an Early Years pilot 
project will be initiated in the fall of 2014. This pilot will involve Hillview, Tipaskan, Ekota 
and Sakaw schools as well as community partners who will begin the development of a 
model for providing access to Early Childhood Services programming district-wide.   

• In partnership with the Multicultural Health Brokers (MCHB), district staff will reach out to 
cultural communities and families to enhance their understanding of opportunities afforded 
to ELL in their early years. 

 
Priority 2:  Provide welcoming, high quality learning and working environments. 
 
Goal Three:  Providing Capacity through a Culture of Collaboration and Distributed Leadership 
Outcome:  Building Capacity through a Culture of Collaboration and Distributed Leadership 
As part of New Staff Orientation the one half day professional learning workshop, entitled 
“Changing the Conversation” is offered to all staff new to the District.  This is an opportunity 
for staff to develop their capacity to address the needs of First Nations, Métis, and Inuit and 
multicultural families. The workshop addresses the changing demographic landscape of the 
District and provides staff with strategies, appropriate language and cultural awareness practices 
that support a respectful learning and work environment.  Staff are also introduced to the Sexual 
Orientation and Gender Policy and the wise practices that support sexual minority students, 
families and staff.  The feedback from participants regarding the workshop has been very 
positive.  For 2014-2015 “Changing the Conversation, Next Steps” will be developed as 
professional learning for catchment groups.  
 
Priority 3: Enhance public education through communication, engagement and 
partnerships. 
 
Goal Two:  Supports for the Whole Child 
Outcome:  Community partnerships are established to provide supports and services to foster 
growth and success of students and families.  
Successful partnerships are characterized by an exchange of ideas, knowledge and resources. 
Currently the partners involved in supporting ELL are experiencing a mutually rewarding 
relationship in improving aspects of education for students.  A sampling of strong partnerships 
is noted below. 
• In-School Settlement Support Program (ISSSP) works in collaboration with school staff to 

systematically reach out to newly arrived students and their families, often in connection 
with registration and orientation activities. As trained providers of settlement assistance, 
ISSSP also acts as a resource for school staff.  

Page 122 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

4 
 

• Reach Edmonton Council for Safe Communities (REACH) is a backbone organization 
bringing together diverse community groups. As facilitators of the Schools as Community 
Hubs Program situated at John D. Bracco, Balwin, Edith Rogers and J. Percy Page schools, 
REACH provides after-school programming to support immigrant and refugee students and 
their families.  REACH is committed to understanding the overall impact projects like 
Schools as Community Hubs have on the community.  Social Return on Investment is a tool 
used to assign a monetary value to the social benefit created by a project, identifying 
indicators of value that can be monetized. The return on the “social added value” for every 
$1.00 invested in this program is $4.60.  The greatest benefit to district students is the strong 
focus on activities which support high school completion and the opportunity for parents to 
increase their employment, knowing that their children are involved in safe, meaningful 
activities after school.  REACH has chosen to shift funds to sustain the four school 
programs for the 2014-2015 school year. 

• The Bamboo Shield Program funded by the National Anti-Drug Strategy involves refugee 
and immigrant youth between the ages of 13 and 17 who may be at risk of facing economic 
and social deprivation. It is one of four community based crime prevention projects in the 
Edmonton area. A program worker situated in Killarney and Rosslyn schools, coaches and 
mentors students to become leaders in their community. Monthly family events are 
scheduled and community events are planned on an ongoing basis.  The collaboration 
between home, school and community is a strong focus of this program. Funding to 
continue support for this program in 2014-2015 is not in place at this time. 

• Edmonton Mennonite Center for Newcomers (EMCN) is a long standing partner to 
Edmonton Public Schools. Their goal is to support children, youth, and families and 
individual schools to promote understanding and to give voice to newcomer families with 
respect to the education of their children. Currently they support Early Learning 
programming and youth in several schools. 

 
Community Partnerships 
Working closely with the community is a key strategy for district schools to create an equitable 
opportunity for all students to participate successfully in their learning experiences.  Principals 
work with educational stakeholders and the community around them to bring the programs, 
resources and services best aligned to the needs of their immediate community into the school 
environment.  In 2013-2014, the success of partnerships such as The Way In has continued to 
support the most vulnerable students at Dan Knott, Edith Rogers and T.D. Baker schools.  Over 
the past three years, Schools as Community Hubs afterschool program, which has supported 
Edith Rogers, J. Percy Page, Balwin and John D. Bracco schools, has assisted students and their 
families to remain connected and actively engaged with their schools.  The sustainable funding 
for the ethnocultural program Bamboo Shield hosted by Killarney and Rosslyn schools has not 
been secured for the upcoming year.  Schools and community partners will be challenged to 
maintain support to students and families without resources. 
 
The current work with community partners and schools however, does reflect an alignment with 
the new mission, vision and values established by the Board of Trustees.  
 
KEY POINTS 
• Criteria have been established to identify students who are considered vulnerable.  These 

criteria are applied to individual students not to school communities. 

Page 123 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

5 
 

• For 2013-2014, compensatory funding was provided on a pro-rated basis to 60 schools 
based on the criteria. 

• In 2013-2014 schools received an allocation based on the number of self-identified First 
Nations, Métis, and Inuit students enrolled at their schools.  This practice will continue in 
2014-2015.  

• The number of identified English Language Learners by school continues to grow. 
 
ATTACHMENTS & APPENDICES 
ATTACHMENT I 2013-2014 High Social Vulnerability School Allocation 
ATTACHMENT II 2013-2014 First Nations, Métis, and Inuit Allocation 
ATTACHMENT III 2014-2015 First Nations, Métis, and Inuit Proposed Allocation 
ATTACHMENT IV Early Education/Early Learning Information Sheet 
 
RS:cs 

  

Page 124 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 
 

  

ATTACHMENT I 

Page 125 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 
 

Page 126 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 
 

 
  

ATTACHMENT II 

Page 127 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 
 

 
  

Page 128 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 
 

 
  

Page 129 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 
 

 
  

Page 130 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 
 

 
  

Page 131 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT III 

Page 132 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 133 of 138 

Electronic Package



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 134 of 138 

Electronic Package



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 Page 135 of 138 

Electronic Package



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 136 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

1 
 

 
EARLY EDUCATION 
  
Program description 
Early Education programming supports children with special education needs in building 
important skills and behaviors before Kindergarten. 
  
Goals 

• Develop speech, language and motor skills 
• Learn to share, co-operate, be responsible, problem-solve, express themselves and make 

decisions 
• Develop positive attitudes toward learning 
• Develop a sense of confidence and self-esteem 

  
Benefits  

• Improved ability to socialize and play with others 
• Increased comfort interacting with other children and families from a variety of 

backgrounds and cultures  
  
Program delivery  

• Half-day classes scheduled four days per week 
• Organized activities within a play-based learning environment 
• Flexible instruction based on students’ needs and interests 
• Supports like speech and language services, physical therapy, occupational therapy and 

school family liaison services are available 
• Smaller classes for more targeted support 

  
Eligibility   

• Two-year program: children with severe special needs who are at least 2 ½ as of 
September 1 

• One-year program: children with mild or moderate special needs who are at least 3 ½ as 
of September 1 

  
A third year of programming in Early Education is also available for children with severe special 
needs. 
 
Location 
Beacon Heights, Elmwood, Evansdale, Hazeldean, Hillview, Homesteader, Mayfield, Scott 
Robertson, Tevie Miller Heritage, Waverley 
  
Children being served: 953 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT IV 

Page 137 of 138 
Electronic Package



 

2 
 

EARLY LEARNING 
 
Program description 
Early Learning programming supports children in building language and literacy skills before 
Kindergarten. 
  
Goals 

• Develop speech, language and motor skills 
• Learn to share, co-operate, be responsible, problem-solve, express themselves and make 

decisions 
• Develop positive attitudes toward learning 
• Develop a sense of confidence and self-esteem 

 
Benefits 

• Improved ability to socialize and play with others 
• Increased comfort interacting with other children and families from a variety of 

backgrounds and cultures 
  
Program delivery 

• Half-day classes scheduled four or five day per week 
• Organized activities within a play-based learning environment 
• Flexible instruction based on students’ needs and interests 
• Supports like speech and language services, physical therapy, occupational therapy and 

school family liaison services available 
• Smaller classes for more targeted support 

  
Eligibility 
To be eligible for this programming, children must be: 
At least 3 ½ years old as of September 1 

• Learning English as a second language, First Nation, Metis or Inuit (FNMI), or have 
special education needs 

• Living in the attendance area of a school offering Early Learning 
  
Locations  
Balwin, Caernarvon, Delton, Ekota, John A. MacDougal, Norwood, Sakaw, Sifton, Tipaskan, 
Youngstown 
 
Children being served: 210 
 
 
 

Page 138 of 138 
Electronic Package


	Agenda
	01 - Draft Board Meeting Minutes - June 10, 2014
	02 - Report 10 of the Caucus Committee - From the Meeting Held June 10, 2014
	03 - Motion re Child Care
	04 - Board Policy AEBB.BP - Wellness of Students and Staff
	05 - Annual Report - Wellness of Students and Staff
	06 - Annual Report - Diversity and Equity



